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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFHRBEHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the ~ ANEBBEREMBEENEEREE &
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial BRIFERERHNE BREETEZLSE

statements is set out below: P HRE) HEIWT
RESULTS E 3
THE GROUP EFH

For the year ended 31 December
BENRIBLEEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAERT TET TERT TET TET

Turnover = 218,721 120,877 175932 155,361 155,823
Loss for the year FRER (41,566) (34,534) (74241) (66,805) (18,134)
Loss attributable to: T &IEREMEE !
Owners of the Company ARBEBA (38,804) (11,862) (63417) (55,275) (24,106)
Non-controlling interests RS (2,762) (22,672) (10,824) (11,530) 5972

(41,566) (34,534) (74241) (66,805) (18134)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE BERIEERER

As at 31 December
R12B31H8
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FATT FET FATT FET

Total assets wEE 557,610 653,854 710,140 642,789 655,818
Total liabilities mafd (194,877) (244,608) (268,469) (128,615) (75,875)
Net assets BEERE 362,733 409,246 441,671 514,174 579,943
Attributable to: MUTFEIEEN
Owners of the Company ERATEEA 281,128 324,184 338,691 398,67 449,706
Non-controlling interests FEIER 81,605 85,062 102,980 115,503 130,237
362,733 409,246 441,671 514,174 579943

SERE (AR EEERAR
“2-_gEm O



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREw R

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” and the “Directors”) of Beijing Sports
and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
2021 annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Annual
Report”), and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Sports and Entertainment Business

In 2021, the National Bureau of Statistics and the General Administration of Sports of
China jointly issued the “2020 National Sports Industry Total Scale and Value Added Data
Announcement”. In 2020, the total production scale of the sports industry in China was
RMB2.73 trillion, recorded an added value of RMBI.07 trillion. There was a decrease of
7.2% of the total production scale compared with 2019, and the added value decreased
by 4.6%. The data in the report shows that the construction of fitness facilities such as
stadiums, fitness trails and sports parks in China has a slightly increased of 0.1%, this

reflected the Sports Industry was affected by the COVID-19 epidemic during 2020.

According to the State Council document "B MMREE B EX REBFHENET
B R the total monetary value of the sport industry is expected to reach RMBS trillion by
2025.The sport industry will become increasingly market-oriented, while the sports service
sector is expected to embrace rapid growth. The central government has implemented
policies to streamline the development of the winter sports industry to encourage
universal involvement in and arouse people’s enthusiasm for sports activities. With the
support of national policies and the constant increase in public awareness towards their
own health, the robust development of sport market demand shall bring about new

opportunities to the current and future sport industry.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary, MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome
Corp* (“MetaSpace”), is the leading integrated service provider of construction, operation
and management of air dome facilities in the PRC. These air-supported domes are widely
adopted for use in multi-functional facilities such as sport and recreational facilities, logistic
and warehousing centres, industrial storage facilities as well as commercial exhibition
space. Unlike the conventional structure, the air dome structure is less costly to build
and to operate, more energy efficient and has short construction period and is easy to
relocate and expand over an open space. Up to the end of 2021, MetaSpace has already
constructed over 259 air dome facilities throughout the PRC. Currently, our major
customers including sports & event organizers, government departments, real estate
developers and warehouse operators. The Group will continue to invest in research and
development in deploying start-of-the art technology in building high performance air
dome facilities. The Group will continue to strive for combining advances in aeromechanics,
new materials, ergonomics, energy saving and environmental protection to provide
space for multi-functional facilities in order to satisfy and meet customers' need from
different industry sectors. MetaSpace has obtained over |30 intellectual property rights
(including invention patents, patented air fight and insulation system, software, copyrights
& trademarks, etc.) covering all key technologies in the construction and installation of air

dome structure.

In the 2021, the COVID-19 epidemic in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC")
has been effectively under control by implementing strict anti-epidemic by the PRC
government. The Group's business has gradually recovered to the level before the
epidemic, however, the haze caused by the epidemic has not yet completely dissipated.
Because of this, the Group should continue to implement measures on risk control with an

objective to maintain a stability in business operation.

During the Period, the Group's revenue increased from approximately HK$120.9 million to
approximately HK$218.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing an
increase of approximately 80.9%.The significant increase was mainly due to (i) the relatively
low revenue base contributed to the Group resulting from slow down and/or suspension
of a number of construction projects in 2020; (i) the gradual recovery in air dome
construction business and the gradual pick up of the overall PRC economic environment

since the second half of 2020 attributable to the under control epidemic situation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREw R

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue was mainly attributable to
the construction service of air dome facilities which amounted to approximately HK$209.9
million of which approximately 66% was for use in sport facilities and approximately 30%
for use in industrial facilities and the balance of approximately 4% for other functional

purposes.

Other than construction services, the Group also focused on operation and management
services and other sports related services which contributed revenue of approximately

HK$8.8 million to the Group.

In March 2021, the PRC Government issued the Outline of the [4th Five-year Plan for
National Economic and Social Development of the People's Republic of China and the
LongRange Objectives Through the Year 2035 ({FP 2 A R MBI B R A E Mt & 2
BE+HERFREMN-Z=RFRZEFHE)) ('the Outline”). In the Outline,
it proposes to develop, build, renovate and expand about 1,000 sports and supporting

facilities for outdoor sports, fitness and leisure.

Our air dome is a good solution to achieve the target in the Outline as our air dome can
be used as various sports facilities such as ball games, winter sports, swimming and fitness
centre, etc. It provides a low-carbon and environmentally friendly stadium which the energy
consumption is only one-third of the traditional ways, which can effectively reduce the

construction and operating costs.

Moreover, the requirements for the construction of the air dome are relatively low
compare with traditional stadiums and are easy to relocate or demolish. Because of these
advantages, our air dome can be built on urban idle land, green space or other non-sports
area, which can utilize the idle land resources and explore the value of empty land. These
can increase the per capita sports area index, change the situation of insufficient basic

stadium facilities, and help the construction of a sports power and a healthy China.

The management is confident that our sports and entertainment business will have a bright
future in the coming period.

Money Lending Business

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has successful applied for the

Money lending licence in Hong Kong through a wholly-owned subsidiary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, the Group's money lending business generated an interest income
on loans amounting to approximately HK$3.2 million (2020: HK$0.2 million). As at
31 December 2021, there were three outstanding balances of loans receivable with
approximately HK$4 1 million (2020: HK$10 million). During the vyear, the Group granted
two new loans with the principal amount of approximately HK$31 million to two
customers. The Management shall continue to explore potential projects to expand the

Group's source of revenue.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholder(s)") for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: ni).

In the opinion of the Director; the Group will have sufficient financial resources to finance

its operations in the coming twelve months from the date of the balance sheet.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

On Il August 2021, the Yuedun Ruidi Sports Culture Investment (Beijing) Co, Ltd (the
“Vendor"), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Sale
and Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with the Cao You (the “Purchaser”), pursuant
to which the Vendor agreed to sell and the Purchaser agreed to purchase the 56% equity
interest of Bodewei (Beijing) Sports Development Limited (the “Target Company”) at a

consideration of RMB6 million.

The Target Company is a company established in the PRC with limited liability and is an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. It is principally engaged in Sports
stadium operation. As the Purchaser is the holder of 44% equity interest of the Target
Company and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the entering into of the Sale and Purchase Agreement constitutes connected
transaction of the Company. As one or more of the relevant percentage ratios (as defined
under 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of the Disposal exceed 0.1% but less than5%,
the transactions contemplated under the Sale and Purchase Agreement will be subject
to the reporting and announcement but are exempt from independent shareholders'
approval requirement under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. Reference should be made
to the announcements of the Company dated |1 August 2021 for the details of the
Disposal.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREw R

OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the investments in the sports and entertainment related industry in the PRC with focus

on air dome construction, operation and management.

During the year under review, the Group's turnover is approximately HK$218.7 million
comparing to approximately HK$120.9 million during the corresponding year. Gross
profit was approximately HK$56.7 million comparing to the gross profit of approximately
HK$ 1 1.2 million during the corresponding year. The overall gross profit ratio increased from

approximately 9.3% to approximately 25.9%.

The increase revenue was mainly due to (i) the relatively low revenue base contributed
to the Group resulting from slow down and/or suspension of a number of construction
projects in 2020; (ii) the gradual recovery in air dome construction business and the
gradual pick up of the overall PRC economic environment since the second half of 2020

attributable to the under control epidemic situation.

The increase in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly due to the gradual recovery
from the COVID-19 epidemic and the release of some work restrictions by the PRC
government lead to the direct and indirect cost of the air dome construction projects

resumed to normal.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$38.8
million as compared to approximately HK$1 1.9 million in the year ended 31 December
2020. Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the Company was

approximately HK$2.8 cents (31 December 2020: approximately HK$0.9 cents).

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of cash and cash equivalents was approximately
HK$79.7 million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$ 1 16.5 million).

Other Income and Gains and Losses

The Group recorded other income and gains, net of HK$3. million during the year,
compared to HK$31.2 million in the corresponding year. The decrease was mainly due
to the fair value loss on unlisted equity investment at fair value through profit or loss of

approximately HK$21.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the vyear slightly increased to HK$44.2 million, compared
to HK$44.1 million of the corresponding year. The administrative expenses mainly
included staff cost of approximately HK$19.3 million, research and development cost of
approximately HK$10.4 million, depreciation of approximately HK$3.9 million and legal and

professional fee of approximately HK$3.3 million.

Impairment losses on financial and contract assets

The impairment losses on financial and contract assets mainly represented the expected
credit loss of the trade receivables of HK$13.2 million and contract assets of HK$8.4
million and the expected credit loss on debt investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income of HK$ 6.4 million.

Other expenses and losses
The other expenses and losses were approximately HK$2.4 million, which represented a
decrease of approximately HK$2.1 million or 46.7% from approximately HK$4.5 million in

the corresponding year.

Finance Costs
Finance costs mainly represented the interests on the interest-bearing borrowings of
approximately HK$2.0 million and interests on lease liabilities of approximately HK$I.1

million.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment increased by HK$13.5 million which was mainly due to the

addition in leasehold improvement of our new-factory.

Goodwill
Goodwill for HK$29.1 million was mainly generated from the completion of the capital
injection of Metaspace on 18 April 2017. The decrease mainly due to the disposal of

Bodewei during the year.

Other Intangible Assets
Other intangible assets are mainly represents patents, trademarks and software from
Metaspace. The decrease from approximately HK$0.7 million in the corresponding year to

HK$0.2 million in the year was due to the normal amortisation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREw R

Contract Assets

Contract assets are initially recognised for performance of transferring goods or services
to the customers before the customers pay consideration or before payment is due. Upon
completion of goods transferred or services rendered and agreed with the customers, the
amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The decrease
in contract assets in 2021 was the result of the impairment loss on contract assets of

approximately HK$8.4 million during the year
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income represents corporate
bonds purchased by the Company through a financial institution in Hong Kong. These
corporate bonds are measured at fair value and is determined by reference to the quoted
bid prices at the reporting date in the over-the-counter markets. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the investment income recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and the fair value loss recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income
or loss amounted to HK$2,705,000 (2020: HK$5,284,000) and HK$16,666,000 (2020:
HK$929,000), respectively.

During the year, due to the policy changed by the PRC government relating to the PRC
real estate industry, some of the sizable real estate companies are facing financial difficulties
that led to some of their corporate bonds have defaulted. Because of this, the Company
recorded an impairment of these debt investments of approximately HK$16.4 million

during the year.
The fair value of these corporate bonds is determined by reference to the quoted bid

prices at the reporting date in the overthe-counter markets. The Group's strategy is to

hold these corporate bonds for long term purpose to earn an attractive yield.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Nevertheless, the Group does not preclude the possibility of disposing any of the existing

corporate bonds before maturity if such disposal will be in the best interest of the

Company and its shareholders as a whole in light of the circumstances, such as perceived

deterioration of financial health of the issuing company, vulnerability of default risk, and

consideration of favorable redemption clause at the option of the bondholder.

Name of bond issuer

RHFRITALHE

Qinghai Provincial Investment Group
Co, Ltd.
EEEREEERRAT
Modern Land (China) Co, Ltd
EREX (PE) ERAT

Guangzhou R&F Properties Co, Ltd.
BNEHMERMBERAE

China Evergrande Group
FEEAERE

Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.
EREERERBRAT
Fantasia Holdings Group Ltd
TEREEREEBRAT

Nuoxi Capital Ltd.
HREFERAT

Name of bond

Bz EL

QINGHAI INVEST GROUP 6.4%
10772021

MODERN LAND CHINA CO LTD
12.85% 25/10/2021

EASYTACTIC LTD 5.75% 13/1/2022

CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 8.25%
23/3/2022

KAISA GROUP HOLDINGS LTD 11.25%
91412022

FANTASIA HOLDINGS GROUP | 1.75%
171412022

NUOXI CAPITAL LTD 5.35% 24/1/2023

Investment
cost

REMNE
USD'000
TERT

513

500

498

512

367

334

497

EREswm RO

BEWML EHEEERER MDA ET
REIZHHBRESBE BZLREREARK
ERIBESFBEABREERHNBEER

T ARLERTS

REAREKRRZER

B {ER) o AEBE PRI 2 HA &R
BERBRGZZH A

Fair Value as of
3| December
2021

BE
20216
128318
NHEE
UsD'000
TER

175

93

343

77

98

80

80

Change in
fair value
recognised in

Percentage to  the year ended

the Group’s 3| December
total assets 2021
BE

20214

HREE 12A318
BENRE LEERIN
BALE ARBEED
% UsD'000

% TE=n

024 125

0.13 (450)
048 (142)
011 (400)
0.14 (270)
0.1l (300)

0.1 20

IREAXEEXEEARAR
TR -EER

13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

s SRV
SN =R RS il
Change in
fair value
recognised in
FairValue as of ~ Percentage to  the year ended
Investment 31 December the Group’s 31 December
Name of bond issuer Name of bond cost 2021 total assets 2021
8E
BE 20215
20214 (R3] 12A31H
12A31H BEAE LFEERIN
RHFRITARLME Ez 2L REME NREE B AfEEED
USD'000 USD'000 % UsD'000
TEx TET % TET
China Evergrande Group CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 7.5% 492 60 0.80 (387)
28/6/2023
REIEREER
Tianjin State-Owned Capital Investment & — TIANJIN INVST MANAGEMENT 0.15% 504 499 0.70 3)
Management Co Ltd 1711212026
REBRBBEAREEERRAT
Agile Group Holdings Ltd. AGILE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD FIX-TO 500 226 032 (312
VARIABLE (PERP) 8.375%
BELERERERAT
Total st 1731 2,119)
Equivalent to HK'000 HBERTET 13,501 (16,666)

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
1 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents the subscription of wealth
management products issued by licensed banks in the PRC and an equity investments.
These wealth management products are measured at fair value and were subscribed
by the Company through some non-wholly owned subsidiaries for short-term treasury
management purpose and the equity investment was held for long-term capital
appreciation. During the year ended 3| December 2021, the investment income in respect
of these wealth management products in some non-wholly owned subsidiaries recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted to HK$1.9

million (2020: HK$6.6 million).

Wealth management products Revolving term Yield
BERER BIRA ¥R
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank — redeemable on demand 3.50%

Monthly Profit No. 4 (Corporate Only)
LERRERFT-ARAEREN FREER
(AEEE)

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank — redeemable on demand 320%
Monthly Profit No. | (Corporate Only)

LERRERBT-ARAERERN T FREER
(AEEE)

Bank of Communication-Stable Enjoy Fixed  redeemable on due date 340%
Income Enhanced Day Open No.2
(30-day)

RBIRIT -2 EWE % B 2SR SRR
(308)

China Merchants Bank — “Ri Ri Xin" redeemable on demand 2.95%
No. 80008
BmEiRT— TH B %) 800085 o RERER

EREswm RO

BRAARBEAEEHEHHABEZERM
BE
BANBEFEEHETHF ARG ERE
EETEFRRTE T EVERZIBES
BEERAKRE ZEEVERELAAGBES
ERFBETIIZEWNB AR RIERHANK
EEENHAARERE MEAEELRE
REEAREEHE20ENANALERE:
RERAEMEERGREREHEBIIER
BENBRAREMERZRERARIIER
BT (20205  66EEBTT) ©

Fair valueasat  Percentage to

31 December the Group’s Investment
2021 total assets cost
120214

128318 HEER
ZAREE BEEZILAH RERSE

RMB'000 % RMB000
AEBTR %  ARBTT
6,023 132 5969
7548 166 7,500
12,054 265 12,000
2520 055 2500

SERE (AR EEERAR
—z-——zzx 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREw R

Fair valueasat  Percentage to

31 December the Group’s Investment
Wealth management products Revolving term Yield 2021 total assets cost
20215
128318 HAERE
BMER {EIRHA ¥8E ZAREE BEEZLAH KERE
RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARETT %  ARETRT
China Merchants Bank — Zhao Rui Qingkui  redeemable on due date 3.56% 517 033 1,500
7C (6-month)
RERT-BESEIC (@A) I EC LR
China Merchants Bank —Tiantian Gold redeemable on demand 281% 10,593 232 10,561
Stable 9205
R RT—RAEERE9205 o RERER
ICBC - "Tian Li Bao" Net Worth Wealth  redeemable on demand 2.36% 998 219 1,000
Management Product
TaRiT- RN B FER o RERER
BMEmR
Total 41,253 41,030
a5t
Equivalent to HK$'000 50458 50,184
BERT AT

The Directors confirmed that the considerations of the purchase of the above wealth
management products were determined on the basis of commercial terms negotiated at
arm’s length between the Group's subsidiaries and the issuers after having considered the

available surplus cash of the Group's subsidiaries for cash management purpose.

The purchase of the wealth management products was for cash management purpose in
order to maximize its return on the surplus cash received from its business operations.
The Group expects that these wealth management products with revolving term will earn
a better yield than direct deposits generally offered by commercial banks in the PRC, and
thus will increase the overall earnings of the Group. In view of achieving balanced yield
whilst maintaining relatively high liquidity, the Directors are of the view that investment
in these wealth management products are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. However, the Group may have intention to
release of any of these wealth management products at appropriate time for general

working capital purpose or any future business opportunities when opportunities arise.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Detail of the equity investments are as follows:

Cost of
shares at
31 December
Name of equity REATE 2021
120215
12A31HZ
BRI
HK$'000
TAT
Shanghai Benemae Pharmaceutical /81 B EMHERDBIR
Corporation (Unlised) /NSINE! i) 24462
Jiangsu Zongyi Co, Ltd IBGBERNERARZE
(600770.5H) (600770.5H) 2446
China General Education Group ~ PEIEA HEEBERAT
Limited (2175.HK) 2175HK) 14,384
Xiamen Kingdomway Group EFEERERRNDBR
Company (002626.527) A7 (00262652) 915

Trade and Bills Payables

Number of

shares held at
31 December
2021

20215
12A31H
FrisiR & B
Share'000

TR

800

217

3859

The decrease in trade and bills payables by HK$12.7 million was mainly due to the faster

payment to our suppliers during the year to help them from the financial difficulties.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The Group's net cash inflow from operating activities for the year under review amounted

to approximately HK$21.7 million (2020: approximately outflow of HK$55.4 million). As

at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$79.7

million, representing an decrease of approximately HK$36.8 million as compared with the

position as at 31 December 2020.

EREswm RO

BRAREFHBUNT :
Change in fair
value recognised
for the
Fair value at Percentage year ended
31 December  to the Group’s 3| December
2021 total assets 2021
BE
20215
20215 12A31H
A3IAZ HEERE EERIH
[AEE BEEZLS QAAEBEEY
HK$'000 % HK$'000
TART % TERT
2446 044 (21,708)
2,125 0.38 (321)
14,857 267 473
717 0.13 (198)

FETRIR R & 3 R i
FRBARERENRERLD 127888
70 ThEE MM E AT Rt H AR TR
EPHEBIBREE-

RBEE MBERREFBFILE
REEFE AEEANKEFHREMATF
AL TEBHETT (20205 | AR H5548
BAT o0 ENRA3E BERREE
BYARHN79.T8E BT BR020FE 12831 HE
DHB6SEE BT

SERE (AR EEERAR
—z——zex 17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREw R

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio (which is calculated by dividing total
borrowings by total assets) was 7.1% (31 December 2020: 5.7%). During year ended 31
December 2020 and 2021, the Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$349.8
million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$389.3 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$173.4 million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$197.3 million).
The current ratio (which is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) was

approximately 2.02 (31 December 2020: approximately 1.97).

Capital Expenditure
The Group's capital expenditure was approximately HK$19.3 million (2020: approximately
HK$12.0 million), representing additions to property, plant and equipment of the Group.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments of approximately HK$8.4
million (2019: approximately HK$10.7 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 3| December 2021, the Group did not have any significant contingent liability (2020:
nil).

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2021, expect for the charge over the buildings and right-of-use assets
with the carrying value of HK$66.8 million and HK$24.1 million respectively for securing
the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings (31 December 2020: charge over the
buildings and right-of-use assets with the carrying value of HK$66.4 million and HK$23.9

million), the Group did not have any charge on assets.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE
Credit Risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with exposure spread over a
large number of counterparties and customers. The carrying amounts of bank balances,
trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. The Group will review and monitor
the level of exposure to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, at the end of each reporting year, the recoverability of each trade debt
is evaluated so as to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors are of the view that the Group does not expose to

significant credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings.

Liquidity Risk
The Group is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as a substantial portion of its financial assets
and financial liabilities are due within one year and it can finance its operations from existing

shareholders’ funds and internally generated cash flows.

For the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances and cash
deemed adequate to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effect of fluctuations
in cash flows. The Group monitors current and expected liquidity requirements on a

regular basis.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi and United States dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. During the year
under review, the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure,
after netting off the gain and loss derived from foreign exchange difference, was not very
significant. Our management will continue to monitor our foreign exchange exposure and

will consider hedging the foreign currency exposure when it is necessary.

EEREmRD
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREw R

Employees and remuneration policies
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 132 full-time employees (2020: 175) in Hong
Kong and the PRC.The Group reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees annually

according to the relevant market practice and individual performance of the employees.

The emolument of each of the Directors and the employees of the Group is on the basis
of their merit, qualification, competence and experience in the industry, the profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from other local and international
companies and prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees also participate in
bonus arrangements which are determined in accordance with the performance of the

Group and the individual's performance.

In addition, the Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentives to Directors
and eligible persons, details of the scheme as set out in the section with heading “Share

Option Scheme” on pages 30 to 32 of this Annual Report.

Save for the social insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund scheme in
Hong Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any significant funds to provide for
retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs (excluding director’s and
chief executive's remuneration) incurred for the year were approximately HK$27.2 million
(2020: approximately HK$3 1.4 million).

Key Relationship With Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers, in order
to meet our own quality, safety, environmental and product criteria. During the vyear
end 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Group maintained good
relationship with its suppliers. The Group also has a well-established business relationship

with the customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year under review, there was no dispute on salary payments and all accrued
remunerations, at all kinds, were settled on or before their respective due dates, as
stipulated under individual employee’s employment contract. The Group also ensures that
all the employees are reasonably remunerated by regular review and the policies on salary
increment, promotion, bonus, allowances and all other related benefits are updated from
time to time. For detalils, please refer to the section headed “Employees and Remuneration
Policies” of this Annual Report. Being people-oriented, the Group is committed to

providing a safe and healthy workplace for its employees and encourages them to have a

work-life balance.

In view of the above and as at the date of this Annual Report, there is no circumstance of
any event which will have a significant impact on the Group's business and on which the

Group's success depends.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the Shareholders
for the vear ended 31 December 2021. The declaration, payment, and amount of future
dividend will be decided by the Board and will depend upon, among other things, the
Group's result of operations, capital requirements, cash flows, general financial conditions,

and such other factors as the Board may consider important.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The management believes that clearly defined and long-term development directions
established for different business segments will help drive the Group's sustainable business
growth. Looking ahead, the management will continue to strive for better business
performance and deliver greater value to Shareholders. On behalf of the Company, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, staff, customers and suppliers for

their unwavering support of the Group.

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
22 April 2022
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRS

The Directors present the report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the Company's subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the sports and entertainment related industry in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") with focus in air dome construction, operation and

management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) can be found in the sections with
headings of “Management Discussion and Analysis”, and “Five-Year Financial Summary”
set out on pages 6 to 2| and page 5 of this Annual Report respectively. Description of the

risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group believes that sustainable development is an integral part of our business. We
aim at creating long-term values for our stakeholders and contributing to the society by
carrying out our business in a socially responsible way. The Group is committed to support
the environmental sustainability and comply with PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments’ environmental protection laws and regulations. The Company is also
dedicated to promote energy conservation and responding proactively to climatic changes,
so as to facilitate efficient use of energy by taking several measures including constantly
carries out internal recycling measures in terms of its consumables (e.g. Toner cartridge
and paper) and implementing energy-saving policies to reduce electricity consumption, in
order to lessen the impact on environment from operating activities to achieve the target

of sustainable development.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are set out in

note | to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2021 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on pages 75

and 76 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the Shareholders

for the year 31 December 2021.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 21 June 2022 to Friday, 24 June
2022 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Friday, 24 June 2022, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 20 June 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Group
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong that have a

significant impact on the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in note |2 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 5 of this Annual Report. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the year are

set out in notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 79 and 80 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, accumulated loss of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$395.5 million (2020: approximately HK$344.0 million). Under section 34 of the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available for
distribution to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Article of Association”), and no distribution may be paid to the
Shareholders out of the Company's share premium unless the Company shall be able to

pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for 50.2%
of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 15.2%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 15.8% of the

total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's share

capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association or the

laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its Shares during the vear. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeem any listed securities of the

Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed below, neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries had issued or granted any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights or exercised any rights in relation to convertible securities,

options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank and other borrowings of amount HK$25.8
million maturing within | Year (2020: HK$6.8 million).

As at 3| December 2021, the Group did not have any finance lease liability (2020: nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr: Liu Xue Heng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam KaTak

Mr. Hou Gongda

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hu Yebi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming

Mr. Xin Luo Lin

Mr. Pan Lihui

Mr: Tse Man Kit, Keith

In accordance with articles 86(3), 87(1) and 87(2) and A4.2. of the Code on corporate
governance practices as set out in appendix |4 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate
Governance Code”), Mr. Liu Xue Heng, Mr. Hu Yebi, and Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming shall
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company. All
of the above retiring Directors are eligible and will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographies of Directors of the Group are set out on pages 61 to 63 of this Annual Report.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company is not aware of any change
in the information of the Director since the date of the interim report 2021 and up to the

date of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Hu Yebi, a non-executive Director; has entered into a service contract with the
Company on 7 November 202| for a term of three years unless terminated by three

months' notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Mr. Lam KaTak, executive Director, have entered into a service contract with the Company
on 23 December 2021 for a term of three years unless terminated by three months'

notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Mr Liu Xue Heng, executive Director; have entered into a service contract with the
Company on 24 January 2022 for a term of three years unless terminated by three

months' notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, an independent non-executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company on 24 January 2022 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.
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Mr Hou Gongda, executive Director, have entered into a service contract with the
Company on 25 February 2021 for a term of three years unless terminated by three

months' notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors' fees are subject to Shareholders approval at general meetings; other
emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board with reference to Directors'
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group as well as the

recommendation of the remuneration committee.

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out on notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year ended 3| December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 31 December 202 |
and up to and including the date of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Up to the date of this report, the interests of the Directors and chief executive in the
shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™)), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in appendix |0 of the Listing Rules

(the “Model Code"), are as follows:

INTEREST IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY
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(Note ) share options Share capital
RIERRE HE&T
ERRYE  REZAH kxz
Name of Directors EEf4 Capacity and nature B RiE (izH1) Ri?#E BaES
Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Note 2) 212E%4 (HE) Beneficial Owner BEnBA - 9,680,000 0.69%
Mr. Lam Ka Tak HEBLE Beneficial Owner BEaBEA - 290,500 0.02%
M. Tse Man Kit, Keith AXBRE Beneficial Owner BEnEBA - 968,000 0.07%
Mr Hu Yebi HEERE Beneficial Owner BaBEA 191,737,500 968000 13.69%
Mr: Xin Luo Lin FEMRE Beneficial Owner BEnBA - 968,000 0.07%
Mr Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming LERLE Beneficial Owner BaBA 290500 - 0.02%
Mr. Pan Lihui BIUELE Beneficial Owner BEnEBA 347,600 = 0.02%
Notes: BsE
0] Interests In Shares of the Company stated above represent long position. 0 FRRARBRBOERISTEE

(2)  MrLiu Xue Heng is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section

352 of the SFO as at 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading "Directors and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of the
Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of

the Company to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 29

to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 18 June 2021, the Company approved the termination of existing
share option scheme (“Old Scheme™) and adoption of new share option scheme (“New

Scheme”).
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to grant options to
selected eligible persons including employee(s) and Directors as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the date of approving the Share Option Scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme Limit").

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%

of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of ordinary shares in the capital of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of

ordinary shares in the capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

A share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is personal to the grantee and
shall not be assignable or transferable. Share options do not counter rights on the holders

to dividends or to vote at shareholders meetings of the Company.
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As at 31 December 2021, there are 36,732,000 outstanding share options, representing
approximately 2.61% of the total number of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.
On the basis of 1,408,019,000 Shares in issue as at the 31 December 2021, and taking
into account the outstanding 36,732,000 share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for up to a total of 36,732,000 Shares (the “Outstanding Options"),
the Company may grant share options to eligible participants conferring on them right to
subscribe for a total of up to 140,801,900 Shares which, when aggregated with 36,732,000
Shares that may be issued under the Outstanding Options (amounting to 177,533,900
Shares which represents approximately 12.61% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
31 December 2021), is within the said limit of 30% of the total number of Shares in issue

from time to time as required under the Share Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event shall not exceed |0
years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of
the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an option is

exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The exercise price is to be determined by
the Board provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer for the grant of the option, which must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided that the exercise

price shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one Share.

The New Scheme will be expired on |7 June 2031 if not be terminated by any general
meeting earlier. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is 9 years at the report

date.
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The following table disclosures movements in the Company's share options outstanding
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during the year: g
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
price of
Granted Exercised Forfeited Date of grant of share options
At | January during the during the during the At 31 December  share options Exercise period of Note (i)
Name or category of participant 2021 Year Year Year 2021 Note (i) share options HK$ per share
BRETRE
m0IE  REEER  REEER  KREEER ®0E RiHERERS ELD)
RS RER I1BIB b iy B 12A3IB  HiE() BRETEHNE BRER
Directors:
BE:
Mr. Liu Xue Heng 9,680,000 - - - 9,680,000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0.764
YBERE 0I6F4F8H 016F4R8AE2026F4A7H
Mr. Hu Yebi 968,000 - - - 968,000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
HEERE 016%F478A W0I6F4B8AE06E4ATH
Mr: Lam Ka Tak 290500 - - - 290500 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
HEBEE 016F478A 016E4A8A E2006EF4R7H
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe (Note (iv)) 293,000 = = (293,000) - 8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0.764
RESELE () 2016545880 2016F488HE2006F4B7H
Mr Tse, Man Kit, Keith 968,000 - - - 968,000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
BXERE 016%F478A W0I6F4A8AE06E4ATH
Mr: Xin Luo Lin 968,000 - - - 968,000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
ERMEE 0I6%F478H 016E4A8A E206F4R7H
13,167,500 - - (293,000) 12,874,500
Other employees: 23,857,500 - - - 23,857,500 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
RftifeR 0I6E4F8H 016F4A8AE06F4A7H
37,025,000 - - (293,000) 36,732,000
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Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

0) The vesting period of the share options granted on 8 April 2016 is: first 30% of the share
options granted will be vested in one year after 8 April 2016, second 40% of the share options
granted will be vested in two years after 8 April 2016 and remaining 30% of the share options
granted will be vested in three years after 8 April 2016.The share options are exercisable from
the vesting date until 7 April 2026.

(i) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus

issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(i) The closing prices of the Company's shares immediately before the date on which the options

were granted during the year on 8 April 2016 was HK$0.764 per Share.

(iv)  Mr Zhang Tingzhe had resigned as an executive director of the Company on 25 February
2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of the report, the following interests and short positions of 5% or more
of the share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the register of

interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of Percentage of
ordinary  No.of share the Company’s
Name Notes  Capacity and nature of interest shares held  options held  share capital
Frsi@ik FsBRE G428
0B Mz BRRERMEE %A 8B RkRFEASL
Beijing Health (Holdings) Limited (@ Through a controlled corporation 353,000,000 S 25.07%
(formerly known as “Beijing Enterprises
Medical and Health Industry Group
Limited”) ("BHHL")
ItRERE (R BRAR (B ERREEE
EERERREXERARAR)
(EmERR)
United Win International Corporation (a&b)  Directly beneficially owned 353,000,000 - 25.07%
(“United Win")
United Win International Corporation ERBnHESR
(T United Win 1)
Central Huijin Investment Limited (©) Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
(“Central Huijin") 45,600,000 (S) 3.24%
MRETRERREEAT ERREEE
(THRES )
China Construction Bank Corporation (9 Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) = 6.65%
("CCBC") 45,600,000 (S) 3.24%
MEZERRITRNERAT BRREAE
(ThEE R RIT))
CCB International Group Holdings Limited (©) Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
("CCBIGH") 45,600,000 (S) 3.24%

BOBREERZERABRAT
(MBTERERZER))
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Number of Percentage of
ordinary  No.of share the Company’s
Name Notes  Capacity and nature of interest shares held  options held  share capital
FRFEER FMEERE  (GX2F
e Mz B RkEmEEH %E B REEASL
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (“CCBFH") (0) Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
45,600,000 (S) 3.24%
BOERERBRAE ERREEE
(MBfTERZR))
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (0 Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
("CCBIH") 45,600,000 (S) 3.24%
BRER (k) BRAE ((BRER) ERREEE
CCBI Investments Limited (“CCBI Inv") (0) Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
45,600,000 (S) 3.24%
CCBI Investments Limited (T CCBI Inv ) FRTELE
Wan Tai Investments Limited (“Win Tai") (c&d)  Directly beneficially owned 93,600,000 (L) = 6.65%
45,600,000 (S) 3.24%
BHRERRRE (Bik) EREnHER
Hollyview International Limited (e) Directly beneficially owned 190,815,000 - 13.55%
Hollyview International Limited BEEBnH#R
Mr: Hu Yebi (e) Through controlled corporations 191,737,500 - 13.62%
PEBLE BERIELE
Directly beneficially owned - 968,000 0.07%
EREnlER
Mass Talent Financial Limited ® Directly beneficially owned 76,200,000 - 541%
Mass Talent Financial Limited BEEBn#R
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FRFEER FMEERE  (GE2F
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Mr: Niu Zhongjie ® Through a controlled corporation 76,200,000 - 541%
FEERE ERREEE

Directly beneficially owned 290,500 - 0.02%
EREnER

Pieta Investment Limited () Directly beneficially owned 123,507,500 - 8.77%
Pieta Investment Limited EREGHESR

Han Jun () Through a controlled corporation 123,507,500 - 8.77%
wBE ERREEE
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(@  United Win is wholly-owned by BHHL (Stock code: 2389). Accordingly BHHL is deemed to
be interested in 353,000,000 Shares in the long position to be beneficially owned by United
Win under the SFO.

(b)  United Win directly holds 353,000,000 Shares in long position.

() WinTaiis wholly-owned by CCBI Inv, CCBI Inv is wholly-owned by CCBIH, CCBIH is wholly-
owned by CCBFH, CCBFH is wholly-by CCBIGH, CCBIGH is wholly-owned by CCBC (Stock
code: 939);and CCBC is 57.11% owned by Central Huijin. Accordingly, these companies are all
deemed to be interested in the 93,600,000 Shares in long position and 45,600,000 Shares in
short position to be beneficially owned by Win Tai under the SFO.

(d)  Win Tai directly holds 93,600,000 Shares in long position and 45,600,000 Shares in short

position.

() Mr.HuYebiis the sole beneficial shareholder of Hollyview International Limited.

) Mr: Niu Zhongjie is the sole beneficial shareholder of Mass Talent Financial Limited.

()  Ms.Han Junis the sole beneficial shareholder of Pieta Investment Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, no person, other than the directors
and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO.
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RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party and connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is contained in note 35 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its employees.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement benefits to employees

beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$ 1,500 commenced from | June 2014. Members are entitled to |00% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee

reaches the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of histher office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
when the Directors’ report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at year ended
31 December 2021.

DONATION

No charitable donations made by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$169,000).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in

relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules
since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012.

LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this report, the Group had no significant

pending litigation or arbitration.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant contingent liability (2020:
nil).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Company is contained in note 34 to the

consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant event has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the date

of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practices. The Company's
corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the corporate governance

report on pages 42 to 60 of this Annual Report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been audited by Moore
Stephens CPA Limited who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having approved by the Board upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, a resolution to re-appoint Moore Stephens
CPA Limited as the independent auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board to fix

its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
22 April 2022
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed itself to enhance the standard of corporate governance
practices and business ethics with the firm belief that they are essential for maintaining
and promoting investors” confidence and maximising Shareholders’ returns. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet the
rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory

requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellent corporate governance.

Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and has its Shares listing on the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 (the “Listing
Date"). The corporate governance rules applicable to the Company is on Corporate
Governance Code as set out in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
Board, the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code from the Listing Date until 31 March 2012 and with the revised
Corporate Governance Code from | April 2012 until 31 December 2021 respectively,
except for the deviations from code provisions A2.l and D.I4 of the Corporate

Governance Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

According to the code provision A2.1, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Liu Xue Heng is both the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. The Board considered that Mr. Liu Xue Heng has
in-depth knowledge and experience in the sports and entertainment related business in
the PRC; and he is the most appropriate person. Notwithstanding the above, the Board
will review the current structure from time to time.When at the appropriate time and if
candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within

or outside the Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.
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Code Provision D.1.4

Under the code provision D.1.4, the Company should have formal letters of appointment
for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The Company
did not sign formal letters of appointment with Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo
Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui. However, the said Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three vears in accordance with the Articles of Association. In addition, the
said Directors are required to refer to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide
for Independent Non-executive Directors” (if applicable) published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in performing their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the

Company.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure

compliance Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performances. Presently, the company
secretary is responsible for ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed, either by her
or by members of the Company's senior management, on issues arising at the Board
meetings. The Board delegates its authority and responsibilities to the senior management
for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions being entered into by the senior

management.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in relation to the
Company as well as the advices and services of the company secretary, if and when
required, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and

regulations are followed.
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There are established procedures for Directors to seek independent professional advices
for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at the Company's

expense.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises three executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. The profile of each Director is set out in the “Biographies
of Directors” section in this Annual Report. The Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the

Board functions.

The Company had received an annual written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for specific terms and their terms
of office shall expire at the third AGM of the Company after the last appointment and may
be renewed subject to the Shareholders” approval at such AGM. Under the Articles of
Association, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being (or; if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
AGM at which they retire. Also, under the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code, every Director; including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At the forthcoming AGM, Mr: Liu Xueheng, Mr. Hu Yebi and Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming

will retire as Directors and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The family relationships among the Board members, if any, are disclosed under

“Biographies of Directors” section in this Annual Report.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against for Directors and officers in compliance with code provision A.1.8. The insurance
coverage is reviewed by the Company on an annual basis. During the year under review, no

claim was made against the Directors and officers of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 30 August 2013 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender; age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out below:

developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

reviewing the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate

governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at regular intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies

and policies of the Company.

The Board met 7 times during the year ended 31 December 202 1.

PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, overseeing the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions, risk management and internal control systems, and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated to the CEO and the senior

management.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 7 days before
the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings. For
committee meetings, notices are served in accordance with the required notice period

stated in the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are normally sent to all Directors before each Board meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The Board and each Director also have

separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and
decisions reached are kept by the secretary of the meetings and are open for inspection by

the Directors.
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The composition of the Board and the attendance of individual members of the Board and BRI FNAIHEFE EET
Board committees meetings during the year ended 3| December 2021 are set out in the RERNNEBNEEEREEZRESY
table below: BHERENTE:

=1

Attendance
HERR
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Directors Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting  General meeting
BtEEE HMEEE RREZEE

% L EL L RERAE

I

% EXgg

Executive Directors

HITES

Liu Xue Heng 717 - - - 33
1218

Lam KaTak 717 - - - 3/3
MEE

Hou Gongda (Note 1) 717 = = = 3/3
EIE (=)

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Hu Yebi 717 - = = 33
HEFE

Independent non-executive Directors

BIFENTES

Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming 6/7 3/3 [/1 171 33
EEIEE

Xin Luo Lin 6/7 3/3 [/1 171 2/3
FRM

Pan Lihui 6/7 3/3 /1 [/1 313
A ILIE

Tse Man Kit, Keith 6/7 = = = 3/3
EIpYEE

'U_'I_I‘I;

Note: i)

(1) Mr. Hou Gongda had been appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 25 () EBEIZEZEERNNIF2BLHEZEAR
February 2021. NEHMITES-
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and professional development

programs for Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors of the Company received regular
briefings, seminars, conference and/or updates relevant to the Group's business, operations,
risk management, corporate governance, directors’ duty and responsibilities, and other
relevant topics. Materials on new or salient changes to laws and regulations applicable to
the Group were provided to the Directors. All Directors have provided the Company with

their respective training records pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs and to assist in the execution of
its responsibilities, the Board has established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee. Independent
non-executive Directors play an important role in these committees to ensure that

independent and objective views are expressed and to promote critical review and control.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The Audit
Committee comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lok
Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui and is chaired by Mr. Lok Lawrence
Yuen Ming, a qualified accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended in 3 January
2019 to reflect the additional responsibilities of the Audit Committee arising from the
Stock Exchange's proposal on risk management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after Ist January,
2016. It is responsible for appointment of external auditor, review of the Group's financial
information and overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control procedures. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and annual
results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval. It meets
regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end, has
unrestricted access to the Company's external auditor: lts terms of reference are available

on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

To comply with the requirement under the Corporate Governance Code in respect
of the responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties, the Board has
delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee to develop and review the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board; to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct applicable to the Directors and employees; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management and to review
the Company's compliance with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance

Code contained in the Listing Rules and disclosures in the corporate governance report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, three meetings were held by the Audit
Committee including the reviews and approvals of the annual results for 2020 and the
interim results for 2021. It also reviewed the Company's progress in implementing the

corporate governance requirements as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee which can be viewed on the website of
the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 | with
its written terms of reference revised on 3 January 2019.The Remuneration Committee
comprises of three members, namely Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and
Mr Pan Lihui who are the independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration

Committee is chaired by Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
on the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
It also makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year for reviewing the remuneration
policy and structure and recommending the annual remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior executives and other related matters. Its terms of

reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed
remuneration policy and oversee the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management taking into consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable

companies, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

Further particulars regarding Directors and chief executive's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to appendix |6 to the Listing

Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee which can be viewed on the
website of the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the

website of the Stock Exchange.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

To comply with the Corporate Governance Code, a Nomination Committee was
established on 3 December 201 | with its terms of reference revised on 3 January 2019.
The Nomination Committee comprises of three members, namely Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen
Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui who are the independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Pan Lihui.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment or re-appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size,
diversity and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and accessing the independence of independent non-executive
Director. Its terms of reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 3| December 2021, the Nomination Committee had reviewed and
evaluated the composition of the Board with reference to certain criteria. These criteria
included qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws regarding
characteristics and skills of the Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as ability to devote sufficient time
to the work of the Board and its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and
Shareholders’ meetings; reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the retiring

Directors; and assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which can be viewed on the
website of the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid/payable to Moore

Stephens CPA Limited, the independent auditors of the Company, is set as follows:

EEERERS
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BZ)001F A3 BLLEE B B
NEVBIUZEBMAESHESHEMERME

PRAT Z EBNEHII T
2021
20214
HK$'000
FETT
Audit Services BIZIRT 1,400
Non-audit services FEBZARTS 250
Total 1t 1,650

The non-audit services represent the engagement in connection with the Group's 2021
interim financial report of the Company. The Audit Committee had concluded that it is
satisfied with the findings of its review of the audit and non-audit services fees, process and

effectiveness, independence and objectively.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements for each financial
period with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company's financial statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and suitable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; judgements and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is contained in the

Independent Auditor's Report.

The Board confirmed that it has taken the same view from the Audit Committee regarding

the appointment of the external auditor.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The systems include a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and are designed for the Group to identify
and manage the significant risks to achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group's operational systems and in the

achievement of the Group's business objectives.
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Under Code Provision C.2.5, the Group should have an internal audit function. The Group
conducted an annual review on the need for setting up an internal audit department.
Given the Group's simple operating structure at the present moment, it was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Board through the Audit Committee had conducted an annual
review on the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Appropriate measures have been put in place to
manage the risks. No major issue was raised for improvement. The improvement of the
systems of risk management and internal control is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen the Group's control environment and

processes.

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong and formulated the inside information policy. The Company regularly reminds
the Directors and employees about due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior management and employees
appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update

appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors and senior management. After specific
enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on 16 January
2012.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Mr. Shum Yick Chun (“Mr. Shum”), is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities are efficiently and
effectively conducted. He is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully apprised of
the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the

Group and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr. Shum was appointed as the company secretary and an authorized representative of
the Company with effect from | April 2019 and further appointed as the chief financial
officer with effect from | July 2019. Mr. Shum, aged 40, is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, the Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He obtained an
associate degree of business administration in accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong in 2003 and a master degree in corporate governance from Open University of
Hong Kong in 2017. He has over |7 years of experience in auditing, accounting, company

secretarial matters and financial management.

Mr. Shum reports to the Chairman, plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to

Shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Shum has attended relevant professional

seminars to update his skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing

Rules to take no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies and
outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees are available to answer questions at Shareholders meetings. To
promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.bsehk.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company's financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted. The Board, according
to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company voting will be announced on the Company's website and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM include
a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders, addressed to the
Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the proposal
relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a director. The
relevant procedures are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of
this Annual Report to Shareholders and will be included with the notice to Shareholders of

any future AGM.
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Article 88 of the Articles of Association provides that if a Shareholder duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other than a Director of
the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she/it shall deposit
a written notice to that effect at the principle place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice should also be signed by the
nominated candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. In order to ensure
that Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the
nominated candidate, such notice should be given to the Company within seven days after
the dispatch of the notice of AGM of the Company. Details of the Shareholders’ right to
propose a person for election as a Director and the related procedures are set out in the
constitutional documents of the Company published on the Stock Exchange's website

(www.hkexnews.hk).

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Registrar: Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals and other
enquiries may also be made to the Board by writing to the company secretary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong at Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | |1 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general

meeting must be taken by poll.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Memorandum and Articles of Association (“M&A") of the
Company during the year under review. A copy of the latest consolidated version of the
M&A of the Company is posted on the Company's website (www.bsehk.com) and the

Stock Exchange'’s website (www.hkexnews.hk).

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes
periodic reports and announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is
timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders, investors as well

as the public to make rational and informed decisions.
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THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

The independent ESG report will be posted on the Company website (www.bsehk.com)
and the Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) within one of the publication of the

Annual Report.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals of high integrity who have
a solid record of accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications,
qualities and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good judgment, and
to provide practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board, the operating requirements of
the Group. In conducting this assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection
with its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director, consider diversity
(including, but not limited to, gender, race, ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such
other factors as it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated future needs
of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives, qualifications,

qualities and skills on the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications at a minimum to be
required of any Board members in recommending to the Board potential new board
members, or the continued service of existing members:

the highest professional and personal ethics;

broad experience in business;

ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on their experience and

expertise;

commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties; their service on other boards of

public companies should be limited to a reasonable number;
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compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board members and
contribute to the Board's working relationship with senior management of the

Group.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which
the Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares its profits with
its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be determined or recommended, as
appropriate, by the Board at its absolute discretion after taking into account the Company's

financial results, future prospects and other factors, and subject to:

- the Articles of Association of the Company;

= the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of the Cayman Islands;

= any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company is bound from time

to time;
= the investment and operating requirements of the Company; and

- any other factors that have material impact on the Company.

FINANCIAL, BUSINESS AND FAMILY RELATIONSHIP AMONG MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD

There is no financial, business, family or other significant relationship among the members of

the Board.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an effective
distribution of the resources and Shareholders’ interests. The senior management will
continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group's corporate

governance level and quality.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board consists of eight Directors, including three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director; and four independent non-executive

Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Xue Heng, aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board, and the chief executive officer with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr: Liu is currently
an executive director; joint-chief executive officer, an authorized representative and a
member of Investment and Risk Management Committee of Beijing Health (Holdings)
Limited (formerly known as “Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group
Limited") (stock code: 2389). Before joining the Company, he served as an executive
director and the chairman of Investment and Risk Management Committee of Beijing
Properties (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 925) during the period from | January 201 | to
23 December 2015. He was also an executive director and the chief executive officer of
Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718) during the period from [ July
2014 to 19 January 2016, as well as an independent non-executive director of Guangshen
Railway Co,, Limited (stock code: 525) during the period from 2 June 2011 to 29 May
2014 respectively. Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business Administration from Cambridge
University in the United Kingdom. He has extensive experience in equity investment,

corporate finance, initial public offer; and mergers and acquisitions.

Mr. Lam Ka Tak, aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
24 December 2015. Mr. Lam has over |7 years of experience in accounting and financial
matters. Mr. Lam currently served as the chief financial officer; the company secretary, the
authorized representative and the member of investment and risk management committee
of Beijing Health (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as “Beijing Enterprises Medical
and Health Industry Group Limited”) (stock code: 2389) and is mainly responsible for
overseeing the financial management, regulatory compliance and investors related matters.
Mr: Lam also serves as an independent non-executive director; the chairman of the audit
committee, and the member of the remuneration committee of Net-A-Go Technology
Company Limited (formerly known as U Banquet Group Holding Limited (stock code:
[483). Mr. Lam worked as an audit manager at KPMG till September 2010. He obtained a
Bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2003 and a Master in Business Administration degree from The University of Hong
Kong in November 2013. He was a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants till June 2010 and has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants since January 2010.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
E5RE

Mr. Hou Gongda, aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
25 February 2021. Mr. Hou obtained a Bachelor degree in accounting from Qingdao
University in 2007 and a Master degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in 2021. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hou
worked as an audit manager at Ernst &Young from 2007 to 2015. Mr. Hou joined the
Group in January 2016 and currently served as a director and chief financial officer of
MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corporation, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company which is listed on NEEQ in the People’s Republic of China (Stock Code:
831527).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Hu Yebi, aged 58, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 23 April
2015 and was redesignated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director of
the Company on 7 November 2018. Mr. Hu is the founder and chairman of Vision Finance
Group Limited. Mr. Hu received his Master of Business Administration from Netherlands
International Institute for Management in the Netherlands and a Postgraduate Diploma in
Management Engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology in Beijing, the PRC. Mr. Hu
has more than 29 vyears of experience in securities and financial services, merger and
acquisition and corporate finance. Mr. Hu is currently the independent non-executive
Director of (i) Blue Moon Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 6993.HK); (i) China Grand
Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Holdings Limited (Stock code: 512.HK) and (i) Gemdale
Corporation (Stock Code: 600383.5H).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Lok has more than 32 years of experience in
public accounting, finance and commercial working experience in both Sydney and Hong
Kong. Mr. Lok received his Master of Economics - Professional Accounting from Macquarie
University, New South Wales Australia in 1988. He was qualified as an accountant in 1987,
and is an associate member of Hong Kong Society of Accountants and a fellow member of
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He has been the chief executive officer of

CSI Investment Management Limited in Hong Kong since 2001.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Xin Luo Lin, aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Xin was a postgraduate from the Peking University in the
PRC in 1980. He was a visiting scholar at the Waseda University, Japan between 1980
and 1983, an honorary research associate at the University of British Columbia, Canada
during 1983 and 1984, and a visiting fellow at the Australia National University, Australia
from 1984 to 1985. He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace in New South Wales of
Australia in 1991. He was appointed as an adviser to the chairman of Guangdong Capital
Holdings Limited from 1998 to 2000. He is an independent investor with over 23 years of
experience in investment banking in the PRC, Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Xin is currently:
(i) an independent non-executive director of Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1 168); and (i) an independent non-executive director of Central China Real Estate
Limited (stock code: 832).

Mr. Pan Lihui, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor degree in International Economics
from Beijing University of International Relations in the PRC in 1989. He has over 27 years
of experience in nonferrous metals industry. Mr. Pan worked in Mind Honour Limited
from 1994 to 1998 as a manager. Mr. Pan founded Pentart Industrial Limited in 1998 and
Able Plus International Limited in 2001 and has since been a director and general manager
of these two companies. Mr. Pan is currently the executive director of Enviro Energy
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: | 102).

Mr.Tse, Man Kit, Keith, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr. Tse is the executive director and chief financial
officer of China Technology Industry Group Limited (stock code: 811 1). He also serves
as an independent non-executive director; the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of Beijing Health
(Holdings) Limited (formerly known as “Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry
Group Limited") (stock code: 2389). Mr.Tse has around 24 years of working experience in
accounting and financial management. He worked in a number of international accountant
firms and the qualified accountant of Fosun International Limited (stock code: 656). Mr.
Tse is a fellow of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr: Tse obtained a bachelors degree in commerce from University of

Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia in July 1997, majoring in accountancy and finance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZET RS

K| MOORE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 75 to 228, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and have been properly prepared

in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Codle
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAAZETIRS

MEERER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most ~ RAEBEZEEANBESME XL E T B
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.  ANEABZ G EMBREPREENEIE &
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ENBREBGESVBRRBEREEL
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a EEEEMEERER MAGMLEERE

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

RELER

BRERER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESNBERNARHARELER

Revenue recognition on construction contracts

BELHIB N 7 i

(Refer to Notes 2.4, 3 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements)

(BREGREMBHRERM 24 3%5)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
revenue from provision of construction services over time amounting
to HK$114,328,000.

BE0F12A31HILFE, SEMBEREREDRERES
FR#5 U | 14,328,000 7T ©

The Group has recognised revenue from the provision of
construction services over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service.
EXBECRRERIRURERTN WD KFRBAETE
STEREMRBIER

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on construction

contracts included:

SERBRRGANRDRERNRER S

c Obtained an understanding of and evaluated management's
process in estimation of the contract revenue, budget cost and
determination of the completion status of the construction
contracts;

« TREEEERNGHEARE REMAIREERR
BHATAE RS ENRE ;

. Checked key contracts of the Group for agreed contact amount;

« BRENGNEERE SEEEENERESH;
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BIAZET RS

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MREZER EENERNMAEEARELEE

The input method recognises revenue based on the proportion e Checked the contract costs incurred during the year and examining
of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs the related supporting evidences on a sample basis; and

for satisfaction of the construction services. This involves the use ¢ BEFENEENEGLOMA > WHMBRAEHEME ; &

of management judgements and estimation uncertainty, including

estimating the progress towards completion of the services, scope ¢ Evaluated the reasonableness of the estimated total contracts
of deliveries and services required and total contract costs incurred, costs by assessing the status of completion of the respective
forecasting the costs to complete a contract. construction contracts, and comparing the actual costs incurred
BAERBERE LN EEENENRSIRB G54 against management's estimation and the profit margin of other
Bl 2 B9 L 1B SR MK 2 o L0 e £ R B 2R FE ) i P {5t R B TE similar projects, on a sample basis.

1% BEGHTRRENEES MEXARRBHEENKR -« BEFGESIERSONTRER LRHERE LA
HENREONE  RATHREHIBI R BEEREE REMBELIEENFBRETHRLER ¥

RSN ARG SR

We identified the revenue recognition on construction contracts

as a key audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated

financial statements and its involvement of management's significant

accounting estimations and judgements.

BEERBESNNRDERHR SRREZER HHARHE

HEAUBREAMEBEXN BV REEENER G5

KA o
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Key audit matter

RRBREE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAAZETIRS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHNERNARHBREELSEE

Impairment assessment of Goodwill

BELBETIE

(Refer to Notes 2.4, 3 and |5 to the consolidated financial statements)

(BRGEMBIREMEE24 3%I5)

As at 3| December 2021, the Group had a balance of goodwill of
HK$29,138,000.
202156128318 EEEAHEREER,1380008 T
Management tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.4. The
recoverable amounts of cash generating unit (“CGU") has been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management which involve judgement by management
such as determining the discount rates, revenue growth rates, terminal
growth rates and operating margins. Changes in these assumptions
may impact the recoverable amount of goodwill.

BEEEREN 2SS BCRAEBHERSAEFRIE
ReELtBU ((REELEW) N ROEHSREERE
EstBMEE ERABEFSEERENEERHENYHRE
BNREAERA HIREEBHNF - MEEMREER-
Wi RE RIFIE R RS ER - ZERREP 5
FEBENTROIEE-

In estimating the value-in-use of the CGU, the Group engaged an
independent qualified external valuer to perform the valuation and
worked with the external valuer to establish inputs to the valuation.
et REELBUNEREER . S£EZE—2BIS
BERINBEEMETEE LRIMNEGEMERRIGEN
AR

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of Goodwill

included:

ESARBERENENEFEE !

c Evaluated the competence, capabilities, objectivity and

independence of the external valuer;

« FHMESNBEEMNEE SN FEERBIUN

. With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists, we
discussed with the management and the external valuer their
valuation methodology and the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in their valuations;

« ERENGEEEXBH T EFEEEERIINSMEEMTR
WEZMGEREZREEEETFRBNE M RERR ;

. Evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation models and the

judgement made by the management and the external valuer;

« MEEEREKEEEEIMNSGEMFEHENESN

ITREEXEEZEEERAE
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RRBEREE ESHNERNARHRREELSEE

Impairment assessment of Goodwill (Cont'd)

BENRETE (B

Management concluded that the goodwill was not impaired. . Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions and key inputs

EEENERA BELERE being used based on our knowledge of the business and industry,
including the revenue growth rate, terminal growth rate, operating

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as a key audit margins and discount rate;

matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial statements ¢ RBEEFHEBRITENT R sHEFAEANRERERR

and its involvement of management's significant accounting MR AMENSEYE SFRAEEER RifERE.

estimations and judgements. RSN BRRITRE ;

BEERBENRENEHNSHBEZER HERES
REVBERRMEBEEZEA I REEENERGSE5 KR +  Compared the current year's actual results with prior year's
FEho budgets, where applicable, to consider whether any past forecast
including any assumptions, with hindsight, had been aggressive;
« REAEENERERAL-FNREETLER HER) -
UEZBBENERRR (BEEARR)  FRERESH
OB

. Checked on a sample basis, the accuracy and reliance of the input

data used; and

- HEMERBARBNERERTERE, &

c Reviewed the disclosures in relation to the Groups goodwill
impairment.

- ETEH SEEBERENRE-
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHNERNARHBREELSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

EWTBR G EERHETIE

(Refer to Notes 2.4, 3, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements)

(BRGEMBHRERM T4 3 195%20)

As at 3| December 2021, the Group had trade receivables and
contract assets, net of allowance for credit loss of approximately
HK$26,323,000 and HK$82,730,000 as disclosed in Notes 20
and 19 respectively, and a provision of expected credit losses of
approximately HK$12,134,000 and HK$8,495,000 were recognised
for trade receivables and contract assets respectively during the year
as disclosed in Note 6.
202112831 B MK E20%k 19F A RIS SEET
REEBREENRIRIERSMNEED B 74926323,000
7T R282,73000078 7T > KA sE6FA K ER - £ T BB
BhaNBEERDBREEHRERDHIX12,1340008 7T
528,495,000 7T ©

For trade receivables and contract assets which are individually
significant and credit-impaired, management assesses credit losses
individually by estimating the contractual cash flows expected to
receive, based on the evidence of credit-impairment and forward-
looking information.
ERNEAREEREZRERERENEENS  EEE
REEEAERERINELEER  BREARARRENG
NEEREBEBIEEESRE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of trade

receivables and contract assets included:

ESARBERERENEENETENEFEE !

c Obtained an understanding of management's process for credit risk
assessment and impairment assessment of allowance for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets;

- THREERBENEERBIGREBUNRERGNEE
MRREEEREFHEETRENENER

c For trade receivables and contract assets individually assessed for
the ECL, we reviewed the impairment assessment and assessed the
reasonableness of the allowance determined by the management
based on and the customer’s historical payment rate and the
estimated future cash flows on a sample basis;

- MERFHMEEGEEERENERRERGNEENS &
FREFPNEENME R AKRERE  MERE
h WL EEEAMEE RN SEN ;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHNERNARHRREELSEE

Key audit matter

RRBEREE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (Cont d)

EWIBR G EEL B ETE (&

For trade receivables and contract assets which are not individually
significant and credit-impaired, management uses provision matrix to
assess the ECL, which is based on collective credit risk characteristics.
The provision rates are based on the Groups historical credit loss
rate and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking factors.
The impairment provision is subject to the managements significant
estimations and judgements.
ENTBEAREENEZRERERENEENS &
EERBEGRACERRERERREERETLRNEES
B-BEXDRE SEEELGEEERIRHAR TERHE
RRERRBEERR - RERFERAREEEFHE
A A&t R F lf o

We identified the impairment assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter due to its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and its involvement of
management's significant accounting estimations and judgements.
EERBURERENEENAETLHARRELS
B hHRERGEMBREAMEBEZE I REERENE
=R EE PSSl

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2020 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those

statements on 29 March 2021,

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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For trade receivables and contract assets assessed by a provision
matrix based on collective credit risk characteristics for ECL,
we assessed the reasonableness of the provision rate by the
management (including historical credit loss rates and forward-
looking factors) and checked the appropriateness of classification in
the provision matrix on a sample basis; and
AERHEFREERREBEREFHEERETERNEES
BNREREREGNEENS  EFTEEERBRARRE
ENEEN (BEELEERERRAIBMERSR) Lk
EEMERFEEETNIERSEE &

Assessed the disclosures to the financial statement relating to the

Group's exposure to credit risks.

SEHBRETAY SEBFEREEARNEES
Ko
HihEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact.We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error:

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Groups ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error; as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

0 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Groups internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

0 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

0 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Groups ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

0 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

0 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan King Keung
Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rERmAkHMEER@ER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FHET FET
REVENUE Wz 4,5 218,721 120,877
Cost of sales and costs of construction services  #H& B2 K FR3E R 75 Ak 4 (162,020 (109,689)
Gross profit ER 56,701 11,188
Other income and gains and losses ELANS A B Wt 2 B 548 5 3,059 31,179
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAS (10,393) (11,974
Administrative expenses THRX (44,222) (44,122)
Impairment losses on financial and ETRERENBERERRE
contract assets (38,805) (19,414)
Other expenses and losses Hithf = k518 (2,405) (4,450)
Finance costs E={%N 7 (3,106) 3,115)
Share of loss of an associate DME—FEEE AT RS (26) (58)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PRI AIASIE 6 (39,197) (40,766)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigi %) /1% 10 (2,369) 6,232
LOSS FOR THEYEAR FREE (41,566) (34,534)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME  EfthZ2 & (§518) Wz
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that BES NG EE b
may be reclassified to profit or loss in BRzEMEE E18) k&
subsequent periods:
Debt investments at fair value through BAnBESEBHEHFA
other comprehensive income: Hthe\kE 2 BHKE !
Changes in fair value NRBEES (16,666) (929)
Reclassification adjustments for losses BiEst A Bz EMDERE .
included in profit or loss:
Loss on disposal HEEE 200 2962
Impairment losses HEBE 16,421 4,844
Income tax effect PRiSIT 2 (26) (1,142)
1) 5735
Reclassification of foreign currency translation  FAHH & /BN EFR B B D EINE
reserve upon disposal of foreign operations R fE 152 =
Exchange differences on translation of MEBIIEBELZBRETR
foreign operations (2,155) (3,626)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that may B] SEH IR BE R AR BT D48 E
be reclassified to profit or loss in Bz HM2E (BB /E
subsequent periods FER (2,074) 2,109
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ FRHEHMEE (§58) K
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (0pRR1E) (2,074) 2,109
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FREHEEBHEBE
THE YEAR (43,640) (32425)

SERE (AR EEERAR
—e——zzg (D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rERmAkHMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fEE FTHET FET

Loss attributable to: DURE TERE(L S8 ¢

Owners of the Company EREEBA (38,804) (11,862)
Non-controlling interests FEPER (2,762) (22,672)
(41,566) (34,534)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to: UTRIBERELEEEISEE

Owners of the Company EREEBA (43,469) (14,507)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (171) (17918)
(43,640) (32,425)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO FAREE AEBIEEREE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY I
Basic and diluted EAREE HK(28) centsiBfll  HK(09) centsiB L

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R FS IR R

31 December 2021
2021128318

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Byt FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E RIS 12 88912 75427
Investment properties RE= 13 20,906 21,435
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14(a) 27,876 39,578
Goodwil BE 15 29,138 37,692
Other intangible assets HttmEEE 16 221 657
Investment in an associate R—EE Rz KE 17 734 566
Prepayments, other receivables and BARIE At IEREMEE
other assets 18 4,670 [1,731
Contract assets BNEE 19 5217 6,020
Trade receivables FE U ZhIE 20 - 119
Debt investments at fair value through BRANBESEEEEEHFTA
other comprehensive income Hth e \ERaNERKE 23 6,767 25073
Financial assets at fair value through BARBESERHEZHFA
profit or loss BalNEmMEE 23 2,446 23791
Deferred tax assets RERIBE E 2 20,941 22,443
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 207,828 264,532
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories Py 22 8,714 13,851
Contract assets BNEE 19 68,542 76,883
Trade and bills receivables PR IE R FE M = 15 20 43,541 72,435
Prepayments, other receivables and BAMIE HtERTRBEREMEE
other assets 18 57,987 28,064
Debt investments at fair value through BARBESERHEZHFA
other comprehensive income HitemlmfNEBRE 23 6,734 23,573
Financial assets at fair value through BARBESEBHEZHFA
profit or loss BaNEMEE 23 68,168 31,759
Restricted bank deposits ZIRFIRITER 24 16,405 26210
Cash and bank balances RERIRITHEER 24 79,691 116,547
Total current assets mMENEERE 349,782 389,322
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAER
Trade and bills payables INEREYGINES 25 78,040 90,729
Other payables and accruals HMENRIERETER 26 57,921 86,448
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings stRIBITREMER 27 25,750 6,766
Lease liabilities HE&RE 14(b) 1,050 3,345
Tax payable FEfH1RI8 10,659 10,002
Total current liabilities nEE B 173,420 197,290
It=EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& AL >3
e MBIRR
31 December 2021
2021128318
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FHET FET
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEBEEFE 176,362 192,032
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EEERREN&E 384,190 456,564
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREERE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SHEBITREMER 27 13,589 30,592
Lease liabilities HEESE 14(b) 7,777 16,601
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEEE 21 91 [25
Total non-current liabilities FERE B EELE 21,457 47318
Net assets BEFE 362,733 409,246
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZXA T EH AL R
Share capital &N 28 7,040 6510
Reserves 5 30 274,088 317,674
281,128 324,184
Non-controlling interests JEPERR R 81,605 85,062
Total equity L 362,733 409,246

Liu Xueheng
2218
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n‘T Cl '-E%;ﬁ@:'i

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021512R31BILEE
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
Share fair value
Share Foreign Statutory based  through other Non-
Share- premium Capital currency and legal payment comprehensive ~ Accumulated controlling Total
Capital account reserve  translation reserve reserve income losses Total interests equity
BAAMRE
HEEH
HEHA
A2 E
iz
URfs  SREE
EBh wER  BEN  AAEE ]
& HEER EAHE  MERE SRR (IRER #E  EHHR @it JEERED g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Téx TAr TEx  FEnr  TER  FEn  TEn TiEn TiEn
At | January 2021 ﬁ"202| E IAIB 6510 549,947% 10,055* (4752 5,540% 17,580% 91* (260,987)* 324,184 85,062 409,246
Loss for the year ERE - - - - - - - (880 (38804 Q76)  (41566)
Other comprehensive income/ ﬁWﬁﬁﬂﬁEuﬁﬁ/
(loss) for the year (55)
Changes in fair value of BAAEEEE
debt investments at HE @ AR
fair value through other 2ENE 2B
comprehensive income, REZNRER
net of tax 28) NIiRIE - - - - - - (13,948) - (13948) - (13948)
Redlassification adjustments Aat ABm B8
of debt investments at HRANEETE
fair value through other BESHH AR
comprehensive income 2EREZER
for losses included in profit REESHDES
or loss,net of tax 2o - - - - - - 13877 - 13877 - 13877
Redlassification of foreign REERIERR
currency translation ENHEINERE
reserve upon disposal of [t
foreign operations - - - 152 - - - - 152 - 152
Redlassification of capital REEBIERR
reserve upon disposal of ENNEELRE
foreign operations - - 215 - - - - (215) - - -
Exchange differences on BRRERINERZ
transhation of ERER
foreign operations - - - (4,746) - - - - (4,746) 2591 (2,155)
Total comprehensive incomel(loss)  ERZERE/ (E538)
for the year g - - 205 (4594) - - 019 @49) (7)) (43640)
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Acquisition of non-controling Wi e R R (fts)
interests (Note) 530 17490 (17,607) - - - - - 413 (613) (200)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHEAT
(Note 32) (HfE32) - - - - - - - - - (2673) (2673)
Share options lapsed BRERN - - - - - (139) - 139 - - -
At 31 December 2021 #2020 128318 040 SeTAE (I3 O SSE I744l N (98T 281128 81605 36273
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$274,088,000 (2020: & ZEREROEGEUBERRRZGEHE
HK$317,674,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 1#274,088,00078 7T (20204F : 317,674,00078
TT) ©
Note: On || February 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of further 20% interests in a Bt D 72021828 1 1 B > & B) 52 A% I g — R T

subsidiary. The consideration was settled by the allotment and issue of 106,000,000 ordinary

shares of the Company measured at closing market price on completion date of HK$0.17

per share. On 2| December 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of further
20% interests in another subsidiary at a cash consideration of HK$200,000. The difference
between the fair value of considerations of both transactions and the carrying amount of

non-controlling interests acquired amounting to HK$17,607,000 was included in the capital

reserve.

BABE—F20%EH - N EBALTH B
W BEAR0.1 78 o AL 8 K 317 106,000,000
RAEAB L EREE 12021128218
AN EITERR WS 5B — I B A B120% 1 &
RENEA200,0008 T ZMBER 5 E
WA EEEMEENI SRR RR
B EBEE7,6070008 T 25 A B A
fBo
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mAEEmEEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE20211F1283NALEE
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
Share fair value
Share Exchange Statutory based ~ through other Non-
Share- premium Capital  fluctuation and legal payment  comprehensive  Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve income losses Total interests equity
BAREE
SHEAR
BEA
A2
Wiz
WRiA%  eREE
frfn ER HEER 2RE AnBE
2 HER EARE  ORORE SRR ORER & B st FERED Bem
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TER TAR TAT TAT TAT TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TER
At | January 2020 R00FIRIR 6510 549.947% 10,055% 3628* 5,540% 17580¢ G444 Q010 338691 102980 441671
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (11.862) (11.862) (267) (34534)
Other comprehensive income/  FAEMBENRE /
(loss) for the year (55)
Changes in fair value of BAREEIEER
debt investments at EHst AHMN2E
fair value through other WEz EBREZ
comprehensive income, RAREEEE)
net of tax ke - - - = = = (783) - (783) - (783)
Reclassification adjustments At ABm R
of debt investments at BARBEHEE
fair value through other HEFH A H
comprehensive income 2EREZER
for losses included in REfFENNE
proft or loss HE - - - - - - 6518 - 6518 - 6518
Exchange differences on BRRERINERZ
tranglation of ERER
foreign operations - - - (8.380) - - - - (8,380) 4754 (3.626)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  ERZERE/ (E538)
for the year feke - - - (8.380) - - 5735 (11,862) (14507) (17.918) (32425)
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 6510 549.947% 10,055% (4752)% 5,540% 17580% 9* (260987 34184 85,062 409246
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

nﬂ'E]ﬁ%ﬁEﬂﬂEE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Pyt FERT TAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATINGACTIVITIES:  E&EBIFIRIRERE |
Loss before tax: PriRAIEIE - (39,197) (40,766)
Adjustments for: MU TEEHAE !
Finance costs B 7 3,106 3,115
Share of loss of an associate NE—EEEATEE |7 26 58
Interest income FEWA 5 (4,363) (1,845)
Investment income and return from financial assets A RBEFEEEESH AER
at fair value through profit or loss EHEEZ KRERAKRDIR 5 (1919) (6,557)
Investment income and return from debt BARBETEEHESHH A
investments at fair value through other Htemb Rz EHEREZ
comprehensive income KEWA KGR 5 (2,705) (5284)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HHEWE BB &R E 2B 5 283 8
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets HEAMBL EE B 5 - 65
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets RILERESEZ I 5 - (188)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE I EA R 2 W 532 (1,573) -
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—EHE AR 2 WE 5 - (137)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of debt investments HERANBEFELHEEHHA
at VoCl Eﬁﬂi@”& 1 BRHREZ
) /B#E 5 (300) 2962
Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors 3R E Hjﬁ/\ﬁ’]?ﬁ AR EEEAEEER 14 - (675)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREITE 6,12 6,100 3218
Depreciation of investment properties REMETE 6,13 1,208 [117
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 6, 14(a) 2,847 4,399
Amortisation of other intangible assets Himp & E S 616 444 1,061
Impairment of property, plant and equipment MEBRERZERE 6,12 - 543
Impairment of investment properties, net REMZREPE 613 - (323)
Impairment of trade receivables, net IR R E P48 6,20 13,186 4,184
Impairment of contract assets, net aNBENBTE 6,19 8,407 10386
Impairment of debt investments at FVOCI, net BAnBEEEHESH AHM
ARG REREZREFE 6 16421 4844
Impairment of other receivables, net HAMEWRIEZ BB F R 6,18 791 -
Impairment of inventories FEHE 6 495 1,177
Fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL BARBEGEEHEHHABRL
THEEZAAEERE 5,37 21,708 2921
24,965 (5,707)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposits ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw‘/ (Em 9,805 (20,626)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories wL /() 4,642 (7413)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets a ﬂﬁ Eﬂ"‘/ (210 3,043 (12,452
Decrease in trade and bills receivables PR IB R P S iR D 18,000 8,894
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables and TRATAIE ~ B EUGRIE K
other assets HtE &R 12,059 1,951
Decrease in trade and bills payables INEREL-GINES: 00 (15,411 (16,767)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals Hfﬁ}ﬁﬁﬂ\ﬁ&}r’é SHER G /18m (27,218) 17,631
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMEEXEHTETH (8,639) (19.839)
Cash from/(used in) operations KEmE/ (FE) Be 21,246 (54,328)
Interest received BUH S 523 223
Income taxes paid BER (113) (1,291)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities ~ 4&X& ZEIFTR,/ (FTf) RMEm=E% 21,656 (55,396)
ITREEXEEZEEERAE

TR -EER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REHEMER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE0NF12A31BILEE
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE TERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTINGACTIVITIES ~ REZEBIFiIGHERE
Interest received from financial assets at fair value ~ RARBEFEAEEHHABGTZ
through profit or loss and debt investments EHMEEREAAEESERHE
at fair value through other comprehensive income  ZB)5t ARMZ2 B @ 2 BHKEN
El# 8 4540 10472
Interest received from loans to third parties RE=FREERHERTE 3,840 1,055
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME REKERE (19,310) (19,198)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HENE BB RREZPISHE
equipment 108 94
Additions to other intangible assets REHMENEE - (178)
Proceeds from disposal of debt investments HERANBEFEAEEHHA
at fair value through other comprehensive income  Hth2E @ 2 BRI EMBHIEA 19,437 46,064
(Increase)/decrease in equity investments measured A RBEGEAEEHHABGTZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRBEENRELE EM) R (36,919) 43243
Purchase of debt investments measured at fair value BB R AN BEEEHEEHA
through profit or loss BrRZEHRRE - (2,797)
Proceeds from disposal of debt investments measured & B AR BEF EEHEE A
at fair value through profit or loss Ba 2 BHREMGTIE - 4794
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—FBEREMEME - 243
Purchase of shareholding in an associate BER—EHERE 2R (181) (623)
Loans to third parties mE=FHiREEM (40,638) (15974)
Return of a loan to a third party KEm—2E=FRMEER 5974 =
Acquisition of non-controlling interests -z oo (200) =
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—BINBAB 2 PSR 32 6,585 =
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities REEH () /FIRRSREFE (56,764) 67,195
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCINGACTIVITIES ~ REEBIFiSH &R E
New bank loans ERITER 12,048 12212
New other loans MEEMER - 109
Repayment of bank loans BIERTER (10,928) (34091)
Repayment of other loans BIEHEMER (241) (797)
Principal portion of lease payments HEMMz A2 D (1,784) (4218)
Interest paid BAFE (3,106) (4415)
Net cash flows used in financing activities HEZEMARERE R (4011) (31,200

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘ﬂ' = EE@/}ILE%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B zE TET FHET
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReERREEBYMRLFE
EQUIVALENTS (39,119) (19401)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FNRERREEEN 116,547 128,657
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SEEXEHT LFR 2,263 791
CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXRBEERREEEBY
AT END OFYEAR 79,691 116,547
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND CASH He&RBRESEMLERON
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R KIRITEEER 24 79,691 116,547

SREAX (AL EMERAS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange") since 16 January 2012.The address of its registered office is 3rd
Floor, Queensgate House, | I3 South Church Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1002 Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong is Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, || | Queens Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the sports and entertainment—
related industry in the Peoples Republic of China (the “PRC") with focus on air

dome construction, operation and management.

In the opinion of the Directors, the major shareholder of the Company is Beijing
Health (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as “Beijing Enterprises Medical and
Health Industry Group Limited") which was incorporated in the Cayman Islands,

and the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831BILFE
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd) REIREEER @)
Information about subsidiaries EHEMBARZER

ARBETEMBATZFENT :

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ Issued attributable
registration  ordinary/registered to the Company
and business share capital EATE
Name ek, B&f7 I3 SR Principal activities
o HRRERMSE  TE/ERRE 2021 2020 TEEH
Sino Sky Trend Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
(Indirect) (Indirect)
PEXEBRAT & 10000 7T (B (B REER
Xiang Tai Information and Science and Technology PRC/Mainland China RMBI,000,000 100" 100" Investment holding
(Shen Zhen) Limited* (indirect) (indirect)
HXEERE (R BRAT* E/REAE  AR%I0000007 (%) (F%) RELER
Zhong Hu Sports and Cutture Development PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100" 80% Investment holding
(Beijing) Limited* (“Zhong Hu Sports”) (indirect) (indirect)
PEEAXER OtR) ARAR: hE/EAE  ARE000000 (BE) 0 (EiE REER
(ThEEE))
Zhong HuYueyong (Shanghai) Sports Development PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100" 100" Investment holding
Limited* (indirect) (indirect)
hEfK (BB BEEERERAT hE/EAE  ARES000 (B (EE REZER
Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports Development (Beijing) PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 1002 1002 Sports stadium operation
Limited* (“Zhong Hu Dingfeng) (indirect) (indirect)
hERBESLRE OtR) ARAG hE/EAE  ARESwoo0r (R (EE EEHES
(ThERE))
Shanxi Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports Development PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 1002 1002 Air dome stadium operation
Limited* (“Shanxi Dingfeng”) (indirect) (indirect)
WETPEREESERERAR: (LARE) HE/REAE  ARES00 0 (B (EE ABSRER
Shenzhen Xin Yi Heng Tong Technology Limited* PRC/Mainland China RMB3,260,000 5092 5092 Trading of goods
(“Shenzhen Xinyi") (indirect) (indirect)
AmEREBNEARAR TRIER) hE/REAE  ARE326000m  (EE) (B BEAm
MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp* (“MetaSpace”) PRC/Mainland China RMB67,750,000 51.66% 4]133% Air dome construction
(indirect) (indirect)
BrABERERERNRNBRAR hE/REAE  AREo7000m (R (B AERE

(ytERE))

IREAXEEXEEARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

I. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont d)

RRREEER @
BERMBARZEN (@)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ Issued attributable

registration  ordinary/registered to the Company

and business share capital b\
Name SRR/ B&T Efb#EE At Principal activities
ol AMREENE BB/ HERRE 2021 2020 IREH
Zhejiang Yuedun Zhizao Technology Limited* PRC/Mainland China RMB45,000,000 51667 41.33%  Processing of materials for air
(“Yuedun Zhizao") (indirect) (indirect) dome construction
WINEBRERKBRAR (WEBE) HE/REAE  ARE4S0000 (BE) (EiR RRBERMEMT
Bodewei (Beijing) Sports Development Limited* PRC/Mainland China RMB4,500,000 —* 23.14%e% Sports stadium operation

("Bodewe") (indirect)
Bk Ot BEERERAR (M8154)) hE/hEAE  ARM45000007 B4 RE5ES

(F#)

& For identification purpose only * EHE 5

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

e These subsidiaries are registered as domestic enterprises with limited liability under
PRC law.
# These subsidiaries are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company

and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company's control

over them.

* As at 31 December 2020, Bodewei was a 56%-owned subsidiary of MetaSpace (a
41.33%-owned subsidiary of the Company) and was accounted for as subsidiary by
virtue of the Company's control over it. The subsidiary was disposed of during the year
ended 3| December 2021.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group.To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of the excessive length.
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for debt investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL") and bills receivable, which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all

values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 3| December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee).

2|

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

RBEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)
When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Groups voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and

continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,

without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non—
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Groups share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income/(loss) is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs, for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or

after | January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BBMBREER B BB GSHER B35
EBMBWMEERE7  BBYHHRSEL F45%
REBUHREEDE 6SEREST

AIE

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

ENEF IR

2|
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)
Impact on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current year The
amendments relate to changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting requirements and the related
disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

("HKFRS 7). The amendments include the following practical expedients:

J A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash
flows that are directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a

floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest

. Permit changes required by interbank offered rate (“IBOR™) reform to be
made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging

relationship being discontinued

. Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when a risk-free interest rate instrument is

designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 23 ClEGEHXENNEENERSE

REPORTING STANDARDS

4|

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been REBUARTEZEMBRRPEAU

issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BEBYHREEREIRMIET
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (201 1)
BEBMBREERE 05K

BAG R 285 (20116) WEET
HKFRS 17
BEMBREERE 75
Amendments to HKFRS 16 (2021)
BB G ERIE 165RMEST (20214F)
Amendments to HKFRS 17
BEMBREERE I 75RBEE]
Amendments to HKAS |
BB ERE IRHES]
Amendments to HKAS | and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BEEGHENS KR

BRMBREEEH RS BLROIES]

Amendments to HKAS 8

BB ERIFE8RAES]
Amendments to HKAS 12
BEGEERIE 1 257MES]
Amendments to HKAS 16
EBGETERIE 65RMEST
Amendments to HKAS 37

BB ERIE37RAER]

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2018-2020

EEMEREERD0I18FEE2020EH
FENE

T ERMERREMBIIMET REET
BBMBRESER

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
I BB SR

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

KREZHABEATHEELEZFHENANEE

Insurance Contracts’

REBESAP

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
20214 6/3308 Z BEIFE R E R E R R
Insurance Contracts®¢

IREEEAP

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®>
BRDEHRERIFTE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Bt R

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Bt 1551 2

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction’

HE—XGELZBERBRIMZELRE

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use?

WE Bz KX - PR EHEAIFTEH R

Onerous Contracts Cost of Fulfiling a Contract?

ERe—BITENZHA

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41°

BEYBEREERE I B EYBEREEREN B EYEREEAE 6
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 23
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023

¢ No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

s As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS |, Hong Kong Interpretation 5

Presentation of Financial Statements Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align

the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS
4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before | January 2023
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the

Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS
3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from |
January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the Group

will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investors
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 0 and HKAS 28 (201 ) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However; the amendments are available for adoption

NOW.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 (2021) extends the availability of the practical expedient
in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 so that it applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are

met.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS | clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity's right to defer settlement
of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected
by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after |

January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.

Amendments to HKAS | require companies to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting policies. Amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how to apply the concept of

materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify how companies should distinguish changes
in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. That distinction is
important because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively only
to future transactions and other future events, but changes in accounting policies are

generally also applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit
or loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after |
January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the

amendments. Earlier application is permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a
contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g, direct labour
and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g, an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after | January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
it first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect
of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative

information.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20/8-202/ sets out amendments to HKFRS |,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of

the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes when
assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These
fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender; including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the others behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022. Earlier

application is permitted.

. HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the lessor
relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example |3 accompanying
HKFRS 16.This removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease

incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on

the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group's

investment in associates.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquirees identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition—

related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set
of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that together

significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest
is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are

assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash—
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash—
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash—
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value

of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its debt investments at FVOC], financial assets at FVPL and bills
receivable at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group.The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,

assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12831HIEEE
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FEGHEREE @
Fair value measurement (Cont'd) AREEE (B)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participants ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level | — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the assets recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the assets or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of

such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iily is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a

parent of the Group;
or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a

parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Related parties (Cont'd)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (Cont d)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

@

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

(viily  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts

as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont'd)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms and useful
terms

10% to 33%

20% to 33%

13% to 33%

Computer equipment 20%

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation

method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready

for use.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost includes expenditure

that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the

investment properties to their residual value over their estimated useful life.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are

recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at

least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021512831HLLEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FEGHEREE @
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont’d) BREE (BERM @)
Patents and trademarks EFIRER

Purchased patents and trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and

are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3.7 years.

Software
Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is amortised on

the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,

except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right

to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)

Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

@

®)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease
(that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms

and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 20 years
Land use rights 50 years
Buildings 3 to 20 years

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the

period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leases (Cont'd)

Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

®)

©

Lease liabilities (Contd)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g, a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a

change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short—
term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase

option).

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are

recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)
Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when there is a

lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. When a
contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of the lease payments and related payments (including the initial direct costs), and
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The
finance income on the net investment in the lease is recognised in profit or loss so as

to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial
assets contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under

HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for Revenue recognition below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Initial recognition and measurement (Cont'd)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages
its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified

and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FEGHEREE @
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd) RERHMEMEE (&)
Subsequent measurement B ZE

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective
interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest
income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change

recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
Subsequent measurement (Cont 'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or

loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or; where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont'd)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the

maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs") for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that

are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next |2
months (a |2-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the

timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, including

historical and forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

General approach (Cont'd)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the Group
evaluates whether the debt investments are considered to have low credit risk using
all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit ratings
of the debt investments. In addition, the Group considers that there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are past due or the

rating of bonds is decreased.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be
in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is

no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

General approach (Cont'd)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for

trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed

below.

Stage I — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to |2-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but

that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and for which

the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
individually assesses credit losses for those individually significant, or with serious
default indicators and credit-impaired and uses a provision matrix to assess credit
losses for the remaining. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific

to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to

adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities (Cont d)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the specific identification basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices

less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets

similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused

tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12831HIEEE
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FEGHEREE @
Government grants s 75 B 22

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended

to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.

(a)  Provision of air dome construction services
The Group assesses a contract at contract inception, identifies each individual
performance obligation included in the contract, and determines whether
the Group satisfies the performance obligation over time or the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. Revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met: (1)
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group's performance as the Group performs; (2) the Group's
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or (3) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the

distinct good or service.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

@

Provision of air dome construction services (Contd)

The construction services provided by the Group are being considered
by the management as one single performance obligation, the equipment
involved and construction services are highly interdependent and highly
interrelated, and is satisfied over time or at the point in time as construction

services are rendered.

For those revenue from provision of construction services which is
recognised over time because the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alterative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date, an input method is
used to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the construction
service. The input method recognises revenue on the basis of the Group's
actual efforts or inputs incurred to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
of that performance obligation. When the Group is not able to reasonably
measure its performance progress, the Group recognises revenue only to the
extent of the recoverable amount of costs incurred until such time that it can

reasonably measure the performance progress.

For those revenue from provision of construction services that the
performance obligation is not satisfied over time, revenue is recognised at
the point in time when the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

services.

The Group provides warranties in accordance with the contracts in
connection with the construction services. The warranties provide the
customers with assurance that the related constructed air domes will
function as the parties intended because it complies with agreed-upon
specifications and does not provide extended warranties in its contracts with
customers. As such, the existing warranties are assurance-type warranties
under HKFRS 15, which the Group accounts for under HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12831HIEEE
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FEGHEREE @
Revenue recognition (Cont'd) Wy EESD (4B)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d)

(b)  Rendering of operation and management services and other sports and
entertainment services
Revenue from the rendering of operation and management services and
other sports and entertainment services is recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group or at the point in time as

services are rendered.

(c)  Sale of goods
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and the
payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for new

customers, where payment in advance is normally required.

Other income
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as

income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders right to receive payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are included

in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

The Group's certain construction contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the construction period once certain specified
milestones are reached. In addition, the Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits or advance payments for construction works, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised
on the specific contract exceeds the amount received. A contract asset, net of
contract liability related to the same contract, is recognised over the period in
which the construction services are performed representing the Group's right to
consideration for the services performed because the rights are conditioned on
the Group's future performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade debtors when the rights become unconditional,
which is typically at the time the Group obtains the certification of the completed

construction works from the customer.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the

customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render

services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which

are given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the

cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when
determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or

performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided

that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont d)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial

to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the
date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were

a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in

the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the MPF Scheme) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those eligible Hong Kong employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with

the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Other employee benefits (Cont'd)

Pension scheme (Cont’d)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operates in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme.The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring

costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are

recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on
which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries and associates operating in
Mainland China are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar: As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their profit or loss is translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average

exchange rates for the year

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing

rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into

Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group assesses a contract at contract inception, identifies each individual
performance obligation included in the contract, and determines whether the
Group satisfies the performance obligation over time or the Group satisfies the

performance obligation at a point in time.

The construction services provided by the Group are being considered by the
management as one single performance obligation, the equipment involved and
construction services are highly interdependent and highly interrelated, and is

satisfied over time or at the point in time as construction services are rendered.

For those revenue from provision of construction services which is recognised
over time because the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date, an input method is used to measure progress

towards complete satisfaction of the construction service.

Significant judgements are required in determining whether the construction
services provided by the Group should be treated as one single performance
obligation and the progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance

obligation at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Judgements (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

The management makes reasonable estimates on the expected total contract
revenue and total contract costs based on the budgets prepared for construction
operations to determine the performance progress and identify onerous contracts.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,
the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately. Due to the nature of
activities associated with construction, the Group has to continuously review and
revise budget prepared for each construction operation throughout the contract
period. Revision may have effect on revenue, profit and other items related to

construction operations during the period when the revision incurred.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 3|1 December 2021 was
HK$29,138,000 (2020: HK$37,692,000). Further details are given in note |5 to the

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)
Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets which are individually significant or credit-
impaired, the Group's management assesses credit losses individually by estimating
the contractual cash flows expected to receive, based on the evidence of credit-
impairment and forward-looking information. Except for trade receivables and
contract assets which are individually significant and credit-impaired, the Group uses
a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets which
is based on collective credit risk characteristics. The provision rates are based on the

Group's historical loss rates, taking into consideration forward-looking information.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default
rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e, gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates

are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates, forecast
economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in notes

20 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

Leases Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and
therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group would have to pay, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific

estimates (such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

Provision of ECLs for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income is an area that requires the use
of significant assumptions, including but not limited to determining criteria for
significant increase in credit risk, choosing appropriate models and assumptions for
the measurement of ECLs and taking future economic conditions and the creditors

behaviour into account.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences would impact the current income tax and

deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of
deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was
HK$5,320,000 (2020: HK$8,919,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31
December 2021 was HK$147,016,000 (2020: HK$129,430,000). Further details are

contained in note 21 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on

their products and services.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group principally operates in one
business segment, which is sports and entertainment segment engaging in air dome
construction, operation and management and other newly initiated businesses
such as sports industry related consultation and management services. Other
segments were inactive and no revenue was generated from them. Therefore, only
one reportable operating segment was identified for the year ended 3| December

2021.

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the Group has two reportable
operating segments: (a) sports and entertainment segment engaging in air dome
construction, operation and management and other newly initiated businesses such
as sports industry related consultation and management services and (b) others

segment involved in other operating activities.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment loss,
which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax. The adjusted loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's loss before tax except that interest income,
investment income and return from financial assets at FVPL, investment income
and return from debt investments at FVOC], loss on disposal of debt investments
at FVOCI, impairment of debt investments at FVOCI, net, loss on disposal of
subsidiaries, non-lease-related finance costs as well as head office and corporate

expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

4 EEHUEN @D

Sports and
Year ended 3| December 2020 entertainment Others Total
BE2020F 12831 HILERE R R R4 Hith st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTER FTERT
Segment revenue o3 BB U
Sales to external customers REEEISE IS 118,371 2,506 120,877
Segment results DEPEE (52,793) (965) (53,758)
Reconciliation: BER
Interest income FEWA 1,845
Investment income and return from BRANBESEEHES)
financial assets at FVPL SPAERZEMEEL
RE WA K [EI3R 3,636
Investment income and return from debt ?ﬁ@ﬁfﬁfﬁ STEEHEH
investments at FVOCI stAEMPEWE 2 B
KBEZHEWAKOH 5,284
Loss on disposal of debt investments BAnBESEBHEES
at FVOC| st AR MEE W E 2 B
REHEER (2.962)
Impairment of debt investments BAnBESERHE @J
at FVOCl, net stARMEERE
%%%Tﬁﬁz;‘mﬁi%é (4,844)
Corporate and unallocated expenses, net TERRDEHZ 2 11,587
Finance costs =1 %:N
(other than interest on lease liabilities) (HEEEANERIN (1,554)
Loss before tax PRI AT ES 1B (40,766)
Other segment information: HithyERE#
Impairment of trade receivables, net PRI R (B3 88 4,126 58 4,184
Impairment of contract assets, net BNBEEREBERE 10,386 = 10,386
Impairment of investment properties, net REYERERE (323) - (323)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  ¥)2 ~ B = KR R E 543 - 543
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - RERKHEEBEE
equipment 18 — 18
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets HE /\ﬁﬂﬂtﬁxﬁéﬁ’ﬁg 65 = 65
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—REBS Q8 W 137 - 137
Depreciation and amortisation e R 19,795 - 19,795
Impairment of inventories FERE 1,177 — 1,177
Capital expenditure* BARRS* 11,985 - 11,985
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and other & BARZBREIENE - BERR

intangible assets.

BUREMBETLEE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Geographical information

(a)  Revenue from external customers

RENEER (&
EER

(a) IEBEFW

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#T FET

Mainland China B g 181,191 120,877
Other Asian countries H T e = 37,530 =
218,721 120,877

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.

(b)  Non-current assets

All of the Group's non-current assets (excluding debt investments at FVOC],

certain financial assets at FVPL and deferred tax assets) are located in

Mainland China, in which all of its revenue was derived.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about major customers

In 2021, revenue of approximately HK$33,313,000 was derived from provision of
air dome construction services by sports and entertainment segment to a single
customer: In 2020, revenue of approximately HK$20,555,000 was derived from
provision of air dome construction services by sports and entertainment segment

to another single customer:

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND LOSSES

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

RENEER (B
EMIEZFRMNER

R20215 BRRAERBRESBHE
—BRRBRREREREEL WAL
33,313,000/ 7 © 1220205 » B BB B K
RS ER —LE—RRRHRAE
BIE AR5 B 4 U 25 4920,555,00078 7T ©

e ~ ELAUSA Be iz B4

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
Revenue from contracts with customers REERENZNE 218,721 120,877

IREAXEEXEEARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

5.  REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND LOSSES (Cont’d) 5 Wk WA KUz Rssts (@)
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEREHNZWE
(a)  Disaggregated revenue information (a) W BB
For the year ended 31 December 202 | BE00F1283IHILEFE
Sports and

entertainment

Segments R RIS
pag:] HK$’000
FHERT

Types of goods or services SRS RFRER
Provision of air dome construction services RMRBERERE 209,916
Rendering of operation and management services RMEE R EIRRT RE M S8R

and other sports related services 8,805
Total revenue from contracts with customers REZF N2 BN G 218,721
Timing of revenue recognition e 220 M s
Services transferred at a point in time S HE— R R R AR 104,393
Services transferred over time PERs BB BV ARTS 114,328
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEREH B = 218,721
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND LOSSES (Cont’d) 5 Wik WA KUz Rssts (@)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd) RKEEREHNZWE (8)
(a)  Disaggregated revenue information (Cont'd) (a) W BB (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E2020F 12831 HIEFE
Sports and
entertainment Others Total
Segments AR B R iR g Hth st
E HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT
Types of goods or services SmAMRBER
Provision of air dome construction services  f /it 5 B IR 15 AR 75 110,893 - 110,893
Rendering of operation and REEEREERBR
management services and Hiie S E AR
other sports related services 7478 = 7478
Sale of goods HESM - 2,506 2,506
Total revenue from contracts with REEP XNz BkE
customers 118371 2,506 120,877
Timing of revenue recognition e 5B 2 B
Goods/services transferred AR —EEREENER
ata point in time k7 50,627 2,506 53,133
Services transferred over time BERs Pl SRRV AR TS 67,744 = 67,744
Total revenue from contracts with REZPEHZ B
customers 118371 2,506 120,877
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND LOSSES (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(a)  Disaggregated revenue information (Cont'd)
During the year, the Group recognised revenue of HK$22,107,000 (2020:
HK$3,210,000) that was included in the contract liabilities in respect of the
provision of air dome construction services, the rendering of operation and
management services and other sports related services at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance obligations satisfied

in previous periods.

(b)  Performance obligations
Details of the Group's performance obligation for contracts with customers

are disclosed in note 2.4.
(¢)  Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obljgation

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance

obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 3| December are as

5.

W ~ ELAM A Be iz B4 ()

KEHEREHZINEG (B)
(a) K@ ERBEA (4B)

(b)

©

Fr AEERETIRE22,107,000
7T (20202 : 321000058 7T) » 5t
AR &S HARR (i RO RIE AR TS
RHEEREEREREME
BHEBERBEBNSNERET
BRTHEERZBENSER
FEBREREHNRBNEREZEH
BB HIEE240

PEEFGEAEFNXZE
%
RI2B3HAEEREGBAETE
(REREE D RER) WX Z

follows: BRTENT :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAET TERT

Amounts expected to be recognised TRHAR BEED AU Y T 2
as revenue:

Within one year —&R 41,834 123928
After one year —FBE - _
41,834 123,928

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue within one vyear. The
amounts disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is

constrained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND LOSSES (Cont’d) 5 Wik WA KUz Rssts (@)
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
izt F7 FE7
Other income HUA
Bank interest income RITHBUWA 523 223
Other interest income HF 2 WA 3,840 1,622
Investment income and return from BRANBESEEEHEFHFTA
financial assets at FVPL BaNEMEEZKERAK
EE: 1,919 6,557
Investment income and return from debt 1Z‘AMEEFTE B HE 5t AEM
investments at FVOCI PEANREZEHREZRERA
JdEE: 2,705 5,284
Government subsidies (note) BT RN (f9EE) 1,269 289
Gross rental income from investment ~ REMELEHRENH WA LEE
property operating leases 2,383 2,071
Others Hth 371 433
13,010 16,479
Gains/(Loss) Wi (§548)
Gain on foreign exchange differences, net [& %R Z %8 2 UK & /5 28 10,167 20,341
Fair value loss on unlisted equity BRARBESEEEEEH A
investment at FVPL BaNELTRAREZ
NABERE 37 (21,708) 2921)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary LENBARZ W 32 1,573 =
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of debt HERANBESEEREEZHFA
investments at FVOCI HtheEWRENEHREZ
W (8518 300 (2962)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEE  BE KR ENEE
equipment (283) (18)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—HEMS Bz NE - 137
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets #% IEfE A E & 2 W - 188
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets & Et M & E 2 518 - (65)
(9.951) 14,700
3,059 31,179
Note: The amount represented subsidies on the Group's business development. There is no Mt ZEREHAEEEREREZH
specific condition attached to these subsidies. Bh o % BN I MRS E MR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE20211F1283NALEE
6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. FRIAIESHER
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBBRIBAISEDLNRE, G A)
THRIBEBRER
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Myt FHET FHET
Cost of construction contracts BRSO 152,517 84,042
Cost of services provided BIRERB A 2,042 909
Cost of inventories sold EHFEERA - 4,184
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BERREITE
equipment 12 6,100 3218
Depreciation of investment properties IR EYZ=ITE 13 1,208 1117
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 14(a) 2,847 4,399
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ ELfth L & E 4 16
—included in cost of sales —st ASHE A 358 10,684
— included in administrative expenses —stATTH R 86 377
444 1,06l
Research and development costs & p A 10,409 8229
Lease payments not included in the Tt AHEaREZHENN
measurement of lease liabilities 615 436
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN & 1,719 2,717
Employee expenses (excluding directors EERY (FBREEEK
and chief executives remuneration): FTETHRASEH)
(note 8) L)
Wages and salaries TERE 24,234 27,993
Pension scheme contributions BIRGTEIHR 2,978 3,456
27,212 31,449
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283NHLELEE

LOSS BEFORE TAX (Cont'd) 6. PRAEIESIE (B
2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i FHT FET
Impairment losses on property, plant and 42 ~ BB K 5R R B S 18+
equipment* 12 - 543
Impairment losses on investment BBV R EBEFEE
properties, net* I3 - (323)
Impairment losses on inventories* FEHRERE 495 1,177
Direct operating expenses (including BEELEHY (BETRNEE2
repairs and maintenance arising from KRBT EEMNEBRRE)*
rental-earning investing properties)* 1,881 1,534
Impairment losses on financial and ERMRENEERERE !
contract assets:
Impairment losses on other HitnFEW IR E 1825
receivables, net 18 791 -
Impairment losses on contract BNEERBEHERHE
assets, net 19 8,407 10,386
Impairment losses on trade FEWGRIE R (B RS 183 %8
receivables, net 20 13,186 4,184
Impairment losses on debt BANBEFEBHEH A
investments at FVOCI, net Hth2EKEZ EHRERE
B85 R 16,42 4,844
38,805 19,414
& These items are included in “Other expenses and losses” in profit or loss of the * ZEEHF AR BERRHEMER
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Rz B AT H B 2 K518 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283HLEE
7. FINANCE COSTS EE={ TN
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBENAEZ DT .
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMERFE 1,968 2,848
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14) HESENE (FEE4) 1,138 1,561
3,106 4409
Less: Interest capitalised B ERERE - (1,294)
3,106 3,115
8. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES REMUNERATION EERTETHAESEHM

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules"), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

AEEBERFETHASHMERE
EEHARZMBERARES LT
RA(TEMARA) ~BBREEGE
383(N@)b) OKkNHEKRLE HEE
ENHER) ROE2BHBEAT

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#T FET

Fees we 1,230 1,380
Other emoluments: HAit &

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e 2R EYIN & 1,124 806

Pension scheme contributions BIREETEIMHR 123 90

1,247 896

2,477 2,276
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8.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES REMUNERATION (Cont'd) 8.

@

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

EERTETHASHM @

(@)

BIFRTER
AFEEENBUFNTESZ

as follows: BWEWT
Equity—settled
share option
Fees expense Total
REGHE
ik PBRERS a5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FERT F#ERT
2021 20214
Independent non-executive directors BILIFRITEE
Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming HERLE 120 - 120
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FRMEE 120 - 120
Mr. Pan Lihui BIUIERE 120 - 120
Mr.Tse Man Kit, Keith X BEE 120 - 120
480 - 480
2020 20204
Independent non-executive directors f&ILJEHITESE
Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming SERLE 120 - 120
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FRMEE 120 - 120
Mr. Pan Lihui BB E 120 - 120
Mr.Tse Man Kit, Keith HXBEE 120 - 120
480 - 480

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive

directors during the year (2020: nil).

FENEELMENEILIENTT
BEEVENS (2020%F : fE) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 3R R MY 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE
8.  DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8 EEKRIETHASHM @
(b)  Executive directors,a non-executive director and the chief executive (b) BITEF -—HIEHNTEERTE
BITHAER
Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme
Fees  benefits in kind contributions Total
FE LR B
e BENEH SRR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FERT
2021 20215
Executive directors HITER
Mr. Liu Xue Heng* =l Eh e s 180 465 88 733
Mr. Zhu Shixing (note i) MBS E (HEH) 30 - - 30
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe (note i) REERESTE (MEE) 30 - - 30
Mr. Lam Ka Tak MEBEE 180 - - 180
Mr. Hou Gongda (note ii) RIERE (i) 150 659 35 844
570 1,124 123 1817
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Hu Yebi PHEXE 180 - - 180
750 1,124 123 1,997
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8.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

(b)  Executive directors,a non-executive director and the chief executive

8

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

EERTETHASHM @
b) BTER —RFRATEERE

(Cont'd) ETHAE (8)
Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme
Fees  benefits in kind contributions Total
 FeoEmR BAD ‘
e EMER SRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET
2020 20204
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Liu Xue Heng* =l ED e s 180 378 38 596
Mr. Zhu Shixing MR E 180 - - 180
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe REEEE T4 180 428 52 660
Mr. Lam Ka Tak MEELE 180 = = 180
MrTsui Ngai, Eddie (note iv) YL (i) - - - -
720 806 90 1,616
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr: Hu Yebi PHELE 180 - - 180
900 806 90 1,796
* Mr. Liu Xue Heng is also the chief executive of the Group. * B BEEETAEERT
BABE
Note i Mr Zhu Shixing resigned with effect from 25 February 2021. Byshi:  SEERSAER20215R2825
H#HEo
Note i~ MrZhang Tingzhe resigned with effect from 25 February 2021. Bfshic  SREEREFEN20219F2825
HaEe
Note i Mr.Hou Gongda appointed with effect from 25 February 2021. Byskiic  EIELEN20219F2825
HEZE-
Note iv:  MrTsui Ngai, Eddie resigned with effect from 24 January 2020. Mistv:  IRIEA 20206 1 H24H

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2020: nil).

BHE o

TEESEFETETHRAEK
=3 [B) B E A MY Z HE (2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE20211F1283NALEE
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. RaEEFHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year include two directors (2020: nil). rEELSERIMNESOEMLE
Details of the remuneration for the year of the three (2020: five) highest paid % (20205 : %) - =% (2020% : £48)
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as EEiES HLFRERBEERT
follows: FEIETHAR) REEEZFHMFE
me:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TBx
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind HEVERUERBYAN & 2,020 1,942
Performance related bonuses BXRFARZTEAL - 2,407
Pension scheme contributions RIKEETEIHR 54 355
2,074 4,704
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees whose FINNUTHEBZFESRIFFET
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BABzEREHNESHEWNT !
Number of employees
BEHE
2021 2020
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZE|,0000007 75 3 3
HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,000 75 & |,500,0007 7T - 2
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 0. FRSHRS (8%)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the vear; except for the
Company which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of the Company
are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5% (2020: 16.5%).
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Cont'd)

The Group's operations in Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate
income tax. The standard PRC corporate income tax rate is 25% (2020: 25%).

Two (2020: two) PRC subsidiaries, MetaSpace and Yuedun Zhizao were qualified
as High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE") and entitled to a preferential
tax rate at 15% (2020: 15%) for the years ended 3| December 2021 and 2020.
MetaSpace and Yuedun Zhizao entitle the preferential tax rate for the year ending
31 December 2023 and 3| December 2022 respectively. The HNTE certificate
needs to be renewed every three years so as to enable to enjoy the preferential tax
rate.

Certain PRC subsidiaries are qualified as small and micro-sized enterprises (“SMEs")
for tax reduction. For the first RMBI million of annual taxable income is eligible for
75% reduction and the income between RMBI million and RMB3 miillion is eligible
for 50% reduction at the applicable EIT tax rate of 20% for both years.

Certain PRC subsidiaries are entitled to an additional 100% (2020: 75%) tax
reduction for the eligible research and development expenses.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries or jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

FRiSMBY (K% @
AEERPEAENESBELDER
TEFRBR -PECEMEBRIZER
K A75% (20205 © 25%)

M (20205 : M) PEARBARL
BREMNAES EHEE S MBI
¥ (TarEmtx) UEEES
B E202 1 FER2020F 12831 HIEFER
15% (20204 @ 15%) MIREBE 4918
AEMNESED R BERREE2023
F12831HM002E B3I HIEFE=R
REERE - SMEMECERHEE
BoFEH— UENZZREE
Ho

ETTENBARFE N RMER
£ (UMVHER) HRNER ARES
BB ThF R A BT =R 75%0
2 AREIBETEARKIBET
MERIRBA R ZR50%M R % > m1E
FENBRLEMSREHDRA%-

HRREBRENAERS  ETHEH
BB /A BB RIS EBIN 00% (20204 :
75%) BIFRUUR G ©

HthERREN ZRBACREEEE
EFEBRYEERENEATRNE G
o

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Current-Hong Kong 2H-5%

Charge for the year FAXH - 897

Under-provision in prior years BEFERETE 52 =
Current-Mainland China SHl— R E R

Charge for the year FAZH 362 52

Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE - (140)
Deferred (note 21) IRIE (F45E21) 1,955 (7,041)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRMELZ L (%) 25 2,369 (6,232)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Cont'd) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss) before tax at
the statutory rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates

are as follows:

FRiSHtRY (%) (@
BRARKRAET, (BB BELQT
RERE DB REFEMERE
FRBZEEREXHEZRERS
(%) BREERNKFEZREBERX
ZHERNT

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
2021 &E R Pyt st
20214 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAERT FHERT

Loss before tax PRINAIRS1E 9,121) (30,076) (39,197)
Tax at the statutory tax rate RAEMKFAEZRE (1,505) (7,519) (9,024)
Effect of preferential tax rates of MEBABEEREZFE

subsidiaries - 400 400
Adjustments in respect of current tax  B{FHAEIBNERFRIB 2 B %

of previous periods 52 - 52
Income not subject to tax BEHRUA (1,650) - (1,650)
Additional tax reduction for eligible BERMERZ 2 BINRIE

research and development expenses 1 - (1,180) (1,180)
Expenses not deductible for tax AEREX 874 139 1,013
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised B HAEI EBIFBRIBE1E

in previous periods (518) (158) (676)
Tax losses and deductible temporary KRS 2 M IBES 18 K B B 14

different not recognised =8 4,177 9,257 13,434
Total tax change for the year FAMIBS H4BZR 1,430 939 2,369
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NOTES TO FlI

NANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Cont’d) 0. FRiSHRY (8% @
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
2020 B IRt st
20205 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FTHT

Profit/(loss) before tax brIRATRR] (B518) 11,283 (52,049) (40,766)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BRAEERMEFAEZIRIE 1,862 (13012) (11,150)
Effect of preferential tax rates of MEABEBERERZETE

subsidiaries (185) 4,406 4221
Adjustments in respect of current tax  B{EEAEI BN ERIRIB 2 A%

of previous periods - (140) (140)
Income not subject to tax BEBRUA (3443) - (3443)
Additional tax reduction for elighle S ERERSZ 2

research and development expenses  RB4MR AT - (734) (734)
Expenses not deductible for tax RANRES 1,404 518 1922
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised 4B7F HfEI R SR 2

in previous periods EFRRERE 32) (325) (357)
Tax losses not recognised KR 2 HIERHE 492 2957 3,449
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year ~ EERMIELH,/ (%) 4258 98 (6,330) (6232)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY .

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,396,000,000 (2020: 1,302,019,000) in issue during
the year

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts presented for
the years ended 3| December 2021 and 2020 in respect of a dilution as the impact
of the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per

share amounts presented.

FRERE AE(hEREE
SREAGBEBNHIRBARFEE
BaRBEABEFABBREANE
BITEBINETI98,396,000,0008%
(2020 : 1,302,019,0008%) 5t & o

BE2021 F 520205 12831 BIEFEFR
2INEREAGRESEL RHEE
ELEAE RRARTEERESM
2INEBREABESEAEREE

EA
mE°
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 SR R P 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE
12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2 % -BER=AE
Leasehold Furniture Office ~ Computer Motor ~ Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF HERE HRRRE WARE ERRR AE fRIR st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000  HK$000 HK$000
Tén TR TEr FEn  FTEn  FEn  FEn  TEn
31 December 202 MIF128318
At | fanuary 2021: R0IEIRIR:
Cost IS 76,515 2,904 506 5,404 L7 1772 16,615 104,833
Accumulated depreciaionand — REFHTERAE
impairment (7,074) (2420) (299) (1531) (713) (754) (16,615) (29,406)
Net carrying amount REFE 69,441 484 207 38m 404 1,018 - 75427
At | January 2021, net of R0IEIRIB
accumulated depreciation and MR ErERAE
impairment 69,441 484 207 3873 404 1,018 - 15427
Addtions e 568 18,278 176 3 68 - 18l 19310
Disposals e - - 0] (1) (28) (284) - (391)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—-EIELF
(note 32) (FrzE3) (1,70) n) - (%9) ) (16) - (1,837)
Depreciation provided during ~ FRFHEITE
the year (note 6) (Fze) (3503) (1,450) 97 (819) (104) (127) - (6,100)
Impairment (note 6) HfE (fzke) - - - - - - - -
Exchange realignment EREE 2,081 268 8 Il 10 3 2 2,503
At 3] Decernber 2021, netof 120214128318
accumulated depreciation and HBRRHTERAR
impairment 66,885 17,507 2192 3,088 3 614 183 88,912
At 31 December 2021 K2021% 128318
Cost S 72,188 21,088 660 5054 87 1077 183 101,077
Accumulated depreciationand  REHEREE
impairment (5,303) (3,581) (368) (1968) (484) (463) - (12,165)
Net carrying amount RERE 66,885 17,507 2192 3,088 3 614 183 88,912
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021F12B31HLEFE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 12 ¥E- -BEKSE @
Leasehold Furniture Offce  Computer Motor ~ Construction
Buidings improvements  andfitures  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF HERE BAREE BARE ShRG AE fRIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TEn TEz TEx TErn  TEn  TErn  TEn
31 December 2020 20005128318
At | January 2020: R200EIAIR :
Cost o 24467 2687 48l 3412 1025 166l 53069 86,802
Accumulated depreciationand — REFHTERAE
impairment (4839) (1673) (209) (867) (558) (545) (15579) (24270)
Net carrying amount REFE 19628 1014 m 2545 467 1116 37490 6253
At | January 2020, net of R00%F1R18>
acumulated depreciationand MR REITERA(E
impairment 19,628 1014 72 2545 467 116 37490 62532
Addtions e = 3 39 209 87 2 9548 11,807
Disposals e - - (17) (67) ) - - (112)
Depreciation provided during ERERAE (ko)
the year (note 6) (1809) (461) (1or) (532) (I51) (164) - (3218)
Impairment (note 6) A8 (Fizte) - (140) - (403) - - - (4)
Transfers from constructionin ~~ BTER TRER
progress 41375 - - - - - (47375) -
Exchange realignment ERHZE 4047 3 14 235 ¥ 64 337 49|
At 3] Decernber 2020,netof 12020128318
accumulated depreciation and BB ERAR
impairment 69,441 484 27 3873 404 1018 - 5407
At 31 Decernber 2020 K004 128318
Cost ik 76515 2904 506 5,404 1,117 1772 16615 104833
Accumulated depreciationand  BEHEREE
impairment (7074) (2420) (299) (1931) ) (754) (16615) (29406)
Net carrying amount REFE 69,441 484 27 3873 404 1018 = 75427

At 31 December 2021, the Group's right-of-use assets (note 14) and buildings with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$24,073,000 and HK$66,885,000, respectively
(2020: HK$23,894,000 and HK$66,383,000, respectively) were pledged to secure

bank loans of the Group (note 27).

R2021 128318 AEERERE
437 7324,073,00078 7T 5266,885,00078 7T
MEREEE (MsE4) RETF (2020
£ 123,894,000 75 566,383,000/ 7T) B
FTIHRANERAEBRITER (s

27) °

IREAXEEXEEARAR

TR -EER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021E12A31HILEE

13.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 3. REME
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TBET
Carrying amount at | January RIBIBZREE 21,435 20,842
Depreciation (note 6) E (Misks) (1,208) (L117)
Impairment, net (note 6) BB PR (M5ke) - 323
Exchange realignment QR 679 1,387
Carrying amount at 3| December RI2A3IBZREE 20,906 21,435

The Group's investment properties consist of a leasehold land under a lease
terms of 20 years and building of an air dome stadium in Mainland China self-
constructed. The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years and
rentals payable monthly/quarterly/yearly. Majority of the lease are fixed over the
lease terms and one (2020: one) of the leases contain variable lease payment that
are based on certain percentage of revenue of tenant's operation and minimum
annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease term.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional currencies
of the subsidiary. The lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$2,383,000 (2020:
HK$2,071,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the Group's investment properties
was approximately HK$22,858,000 (2020: HK$22,193,000) as at 3| December
2021.

The fair value measurements of the Group's investment properties are categorised
within Level 3. The valuation technique is the income approach and the significant
inputs used in the fair value measurement are the estimated rental value and
discount rate.

The minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment properties is
disclosed in note 14.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASES

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

14 5
The Group as a lessee FERMEREBA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings and land used in its FEBBREANEEREENETE
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land FRIMBENHEESN - BIEAE
from the owner with a lease period of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be H—XMARAmEFTHEEEL
made under the term of this land lease. Leases of buildings and land generally have # > FEAASOE  MIBEZE L HAE
lease terms of 3 to 20 years. AR A GBS (HERIRIE 18
FRIMBENERET A3EW0E-
(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) @FHAESE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the movements FEBFREAEEENKA
during the year are as follows: ERBEMT :
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
THBE BF a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TBT
At | January 2020 7202051 B 1H 22,875 16,791 39,666
Additions =T = 4,401 4401
Depreciation charge (note 6) T EERAS (Fi95H6) (475) (3924) (4,399)
Termination of a lease BIEHEE - (2,581) 2.581)
Exchange realignment bE 2 528 1,494 997 2491
At 3| December 2020 and 12202012831 B %
| January 202 | 2021 IR 18 23,894 15,684 39,578
Depreciation charge (note 6)  TER (Izk6) (509) (2,338) (2,847
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EWEAE
(note 32) (PEE32) - (9,796) (9,796)
Exchange realignment bE 2 528 688 253 %41
As at 3| December 2021 1R2021 128318 24,073 3,803 27876

At 31 December 2021, the Group's right-of-use assets and building (note 12)

with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$24,073,000 and HK$66,885,000,

respectively (2020: HK$23,894,000 and HK$66,383,000, respectively) were
pledged to secure bank loans of the Group (note 27).

2021128318 REBREAED
A1) 7524,073,00078 7T 52 66,885,00078 7T Y
FREBEKET (MEE12) (20204 :
9351 %523,894,00078 7T K266,383,0008 7T)
EFIERUERNAERRTER (M
27) °

IREAXEEXEEARAR
TR -EER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

14. LEASES (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (Cont d)

()

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year

14.

HE @

FEEEREBA (R

b HEEE
FREECBENREERES

are as follows: LI
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Carrying amount at | January RIBIBHNEREE 19,946 21,935
New leases CAGEN=] - 4401
Accretion of interest recognised during FRERRH SEE (F5E7)
the year (note 7) 1,138 1,561
Covid-19-related rent concessions R B B AR H A8 R
from lessors HEER - (675)
Payments (N (2,922) (5779)
Termination of a lease RIFEE - (2,769)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) HE—REMBAS (FzE32) (9,748) -
Exchange realignment bE R R 413 1,272
Carrying amount at 31 December RI2B3IBEREE 8,827 19,946
Analysed into: PR
Current portion RENE 1,050 3,345
Non-current portion IEREE D 7,777 16,601

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 38 to the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASES (Cont'd) 14,

The Group as a lessee (Cont d)

©

@

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

HE @

FEEEAEBA (@)

(© REZREDNEEBEBRE
me:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Interest on lease liabilities HESEANR 1,138 1,56
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FHARBENERS 2,847 4,399
Expense relating to short-term leases and B HATE B ReER NAREAS 12A31HE
other leases with remaining lease terms ZAEmEMEEHERRM
ended on or before 3| December (included (5T ASHE M A KR T EIBE )
in cost of sales and administrative expenses) 615 436
Covid-9-related rent concessions from lessors 2R B B A 2 i mEEEEESER - (675)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R D4R R 4,600 5721

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33(c) to the financial

statements.

(d MHERSRHERFENGTE
HAFRMIFE33(C) 0

IREAXEEXEEARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

14. LEASES (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note |3) consisting of a leasehold
land and building of an air dome stadium under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years. Majority of the lease are
fixed over the lease terms and one (2020: one) of the leases contain variable lease
payment that are based on certain percentage of revenue of tenant's operation
and minimum annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease term. The terms
of the leases require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments. At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted minimum
lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

HE @

FEEEAHEA
FEBRBCEHEZHHEARE
M (MsE13)  A—REEL MR —
BRESGEMAR BHE-—ERFE
B AZHMEEHAENARE AP
—I5 (20205 : —I8) B OB E [
HoRBEEFEERENE—S2HL
REHNEENREEERE ARG
B HERFAEAL BZMIRRE
CUREETEHRSHEE -RRE
xR AEBHBREBEAABEZ R
o] 8 A 70 B B9 oK Al 3R R R FE Uk AR
BRIEMT

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THET

Within one year —FRX 1,830 2,176
After one year but within two years —FRERMER 1,783 [,123
After two years but within three years MEBER=ZFR 1,103 876
After three years but within four years =FBREREERN - 28|
4716 4,456
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283NHLELEE

GOODWILL 5. HE
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-generating units was PEEEREELEMNHERAE
as follows: LI
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Air dome construction CGU REZRRSELSN 29,138 29,138
Bodewei stadium operation CGU RS EEES R AT B - 8,554
29,138 37,692
The movements during the year are as follows: FREHUT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Carrying amount at | January ®IA I BHRAEE 37,692 37,692
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) HE—BWBE AR (F32) (8,554) —
Carrying amount at 3| December RI2A3 BHEREE 29,138 37,692
Impairment testing of goodwill & i E R

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the following cash—

generating units (the CGU) for impairment testing:

. Air dome construction CGU;

. Bodewei stadium operation CGU; and

. Trading products CGU.

EREBEHEENBEDDEEMN
TREELEN ((REEES) &

TRERE

- REERRSELEB;

XA

ARESEEEREEL B,

- RBPEMREELEB-

IREAXEEXEEARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

I5.

GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont’d)

Air dome construction CGU

The recoverable amount of the air dome construction CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is |1.22% (2020: 12.86%). The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the air dome construction unit beyond
the five-year period is 2.0% (2020: 2.6%), which is same as the expected long-term

inflation rate. There was no impairment of goodwill.

Bodewei stadium operation CGU

In 2020, the recoverable amount of the Bodewei stadium operation CGU was
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a six-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 17.43%.The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the Bodewei stadium operation unit beyond the
six-year period is 2.6%, which is same as the expected long-term inflation rate. There
was no impairment of goodwill. The Bodewei stadium operation CGU was disposed

of during the year ended 3| December 2021.

Trading products CGU
The goodwill of the trading products CGU of HK$689,000 was fully impaired in

previous year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont’d)

The key assumption for the value in use calculations

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the air dome construction
CGU and Bodewei stadium operation CGU for 31 December 202! and
31 December 2020. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of

goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management determined budgeted gross margins based

on past performance and its expectations for market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect specific risks

relating to the relevant unit.

Growth rates — The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the

financial budget periods are based on the expected long-term inflation rate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of air dome
construction and Bodewei stadium operation, discount rates and growth rates are

consistent with external information sources.

5.

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

HE @
BERENR @
R’ EE Z R

12021512831 H %2020 128318
AERRRSELBAREELESE
EEReEL B HEHBENER
ERARR - UTHAEEREETH
ZREAAKRERSRERRME
ZEEFERR !

REEFX-EEERBBEREX
HHTSERNRHETREERN

o

HHRE-FRERZITREDBRRE T
RERRREBEMZSTE /L -

BRE-HEVHRENERZES
REFERZERXDRERSRE
BIREAF -

RERERBREGEEETLELR
MEZRRE - MHERRRERRASIH
B RIHR—

IREAXEEXEEARAR
TR -EER

167



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 SR R P 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

l6. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS le. EftEREE
Patents  Trademarks Software Total
&7 G LGS w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHET FHET FTHxT
3| December 2021 2021 12A31H
Cost at | January 2021, net of 021 FIBIHZ A

accumulated amortization MERRET 358 I 288 657
Additions NE
Disposal HE
Amortisation provided during the year P ETI#EEH (FI5E6)

(note 6) (358) (I (75) (444)
Exchange realignment R RE = = 8 8
At 31 December 202 12021 12H831H = - 221 221
At 31 December 202 | 12021128318

Cost BRI 39,533 1,130 861 41,524

Accumulated amortisation R (39,533) (1,130) (640) (41,303)
Net carrying amount SREVEE = = 221 221
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16.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

l6. HthEREE @)

Patents  Trademarks Software Total
&7 [E]: LGS A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHx FHET FTHET

3| December 2020

Cost at | January 2020, net of

2020 12831H

2020 1 B 1 B Z Al s 2

accumulated amortization PR Rt #H 11,042 316 231 1,589
Additions NE - - 178 178
Disposal HE - - (65) (65)
Amortisation provided during the year I FTIR#EH (FI5E6)

(note 6) (10,684) (305) (72) (11,061)
Exchange realignment QR = = 16 16
At 31 December 2020 12020 12831 H 358 I 288 657
At 31 December 2020 1220205128318

Cost DN 39,533 1,130 837 41,500

Accumulated amortisation KT (39,175) (1,119) (549) (40,843)
Net carrying amount REFEE 358 I 288 657
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

7. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

7. HR—RBEQEZKRE

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Share of net assets DIEFEE 734 566

The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group's associate that

TRITHEAEEMS BAE AR

is not material: EABZHBER
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Share of the associates loss for the year FADMLHERBIGE (26) (58)
Aggregate carrying amount of EEERBMERBREZ
the Group's investment in the associate AREARE 734 566

8. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

8. FEfITRIE IR R H S E

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Prepayments FBARIE 2,166 11914
Deposits e 6,086 4,783
Loans to third parties (note a) A% =HREER (fita) 49,985 15,974
Other receivables (note b) HAtEWGRIE (Fid5Eb) 4,420 7,124
62,657 39,795

Analysed into valiiv=
Current portion mENER 7 57,987 28,064
Non-current portion IERE D 4,670 11,731
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (Cont'd) 18 FEMIE - HMEKRIEREMEE

@
(2) Loans to third parties @ RE=ZARUER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Current mE
HK$ loan to a third party, guaranteed by its ~ [E5 = ARt R EREEFRNERN
shareholder (LU TTEHE) 10,000 10,000
RMB loan to a third party, guaranteed by its  [E5 = iR ERREFRNER
shareholder UARESHE) 9,785 =
HK$ Loan to a third party, pledged by the its A58 = A RERNER (B THE) »
first charge properties located in Hong HUREENE—IERYEER
Kong, guaranteed by its sole shareholderand BHHEME—KRENRERAZ
his family member's personal guarantees BABRER 15,000 =
HK$ Loan to a third party, pledged by its AE=FRENER WUBTHE)
second charge properties located in Hong AR EENE ZIREMERER
Kong, pledged by its shareholders’ unlised ~ BRA EMREREZ R
equity investments, guaranteed by its B B H IR K B A B R
shareholders and related companies 16,000 -
Unsecured loan to a third party ME=HRERIEHER - 5974
50,785 15,974
Allowance for credit losses EEEEEE (800) =
49,985 15,974
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

8. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (Cont'd)

@

Loans to third parties (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2021, loans to third parties (net of expected credit
losses) of HK$49,985,000 (2020: HK$15974,000) were due from four
borrowers (2020: two borrowers). Loans to third parties bore interest at
rates ranging from 8% to 5% per annum (2020 : 8% to 10% per annum)

with maturity date within one year from the date of reporting period.

The movements in the allowance for credit losses of loans to third parties are

ANRE-HtERREREMEE

#

@ RE=ZARUER )
12021128318 M&ERA
(2020%F : MAERA) BE=
FRENER MREREES
18) 749,985,000 7T ( 20204 :
15974,000/87T) ° M5 =7 it
MEFIEEFZEBZE15% (2020
F8%EI0%) sTE EIHAE
REHBMSE—FR-

AE=NRTEEREEEEE

as follows: BEEINT !
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At beginning of year F4) - -
Impairment losses (note 6) HEEE (i) 791 -
Exchange realignment b R R 9 =
At end of year FR 800 -

The directors of the Company regularly review and assess the credit
quality and financial positions of the counterparties, and also the collateral
provided. The directors of the Group have assessed the market value of
the collateral pledged of each individual customer and considered that the
collateral pledged are sufficient. The Group uses lifetime expected credit
loss to assess the allowance for credit losses of loans to third parties as the
maturity date of these loans were within one year from the date of reporting
period. Since these loans to third parties are not past due, and there has no
historical default record, the directors consider that the Group's credit risk
in not significant after considering the financial background and condition of
the counterparties. Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider to
recognise the expected credit loss for loans to third parties amounted to

HK$791,000, mainly related to guaranteed loans to third parties.
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(b)

18. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (Cont'd) 18 FEMIE - HMEKRIEREMEE
@
Other receivables (b) EHftiFEWIE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Other receivables HihEUREIE 4,420 37,649
Allowance for credit losses EEBREE - (30,525)
4,420 7,124

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

The movements in the allowance for credit losses of other receivables are as

HithEWRIENEEREER

follows: BET
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER T8
At beginning of year FH) 30,525 28,622
Written off b6z (30,525) =
Exchange realignment bE R EHE - 1,903
At end of year FXR - 30,525

IREAXEEXEEARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021E12A31HILEE
19. CONTRACT ASSETS 9. BHNEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Contract assets arising from: BREERE !
Construction services RIS 102,616 102,532
Operation, management and SE-BERHEM
other sports related services e A5 HRA RS 407 520
103,023 103,052
Allowance for credit losses EEEBEEE (29,264) (20,149)
73,759 82,903
Analysed into: vaLiiv= I
Current portion mENE 7 68,542 76,883
Non-current portion JERE D 5217 6,020

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights to consideration for
services provided but not billed at the reporting date related to the provision
of construction services and operation, management and other sports related
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of
the construction and operation, management and other sports related services.
Included in the contract assets for services are retention receivables and unbilled
trade receivables. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights
become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group issues an invoice to the

customer.
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9.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTRACT ASSETS (Cont'd)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as at the end of

the reporting period is as follows:

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

BNEE (@

RBREHARKENEEENEENTE
HARFRANE

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT TET

Within one year —&R 97,587 89,066
After one year —F% 5,436 13986
Total contract assets BHEERE 103,023 103,052

The movements in the allowance for credit losses of contract assets are as follows:

ANEECERRERESHNT

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At beginning of year F9) 20,149 8,632
Impairment losses (note 6) HEEE (M) 8,407 10,386
Exchange realignment QR 708 131
At end of the year FR 29,264 20,149

The increase in the allowance for credit losses for the year ended 31 December

2021 and 2020 was mainly due to several individual customers in default payments.

HE202 I FE 520205 12831 HIEFESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021E12A31HILEE
19. CONTRACT ASSETS (Cont’d) 9. BHNEE®B
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision EREHRERREERETRE
matrix to measure expected credit losses as well as individually assessed for certain AWMU ERREEEE UitH
customers that were with significant default indicators and credit-impaired. The BEBREERASRAKHREEREN
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract ETERETERTML-FEEHNE
assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets and the ENEHEEEBENREXDERE
trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract FREKMIE RRASNEEKREK
assets are based on the ageing of contract assets for groupings of various customer RERBERE-—RFREE-SNEERN
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted BEXDIREASEUSRERNSG
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that TRRENNENEERRXHAE
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts BH -ZAERMTHEMELER &
of future economic conditions. The individually impaired contract assets related to KEBEENRRREHRATESH
customers that were credit-impaired or in default payments and no receivables are BERBEEH BRI R ERRE
expected to be recovered. Set out below is the information about the credit risk ERAEANGENISZHER &
exposure on the Group's contract assets: HIREEREIIEXTRHNE FEE
MENBEEC @R HIRBERRFT
AU Bl KR IE - U B A&
EaNBEEGERRZERN
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TBx
Impairment of credit losses assessed by SERRASERREERTEZ
credit risk portfolio using provision matrices EEBERE
Expected credit loss rate BHREEHEX 6.00% 5.65%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREARME (T8 73,138 87,868
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BHEEEE (FET) 4,388 4,965
Impairment of credit losses assessed individually BIEMhZ EEBERE
Expected credit loss rate BHREEBEX 83.24% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREARME (T8 29,885 15,184
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BHEEEE (FE) 24,876 15,184
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 0. BURRIERERERE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Trade receivables arising from: E4 BUTRBRUGIER |
Construction services RIS 75,935 96,558
Operation, management and other sports S BIERHMEESERRE
related services 1,568 854
77,503 97,412
Allowance for credit losses EERIREE (42,413) (29.496)
Net trade receivables WG IRF 88 35,090 67916
Bills receivables at FVOCI — current BANBEFARMEERT
Z R iE—R 8,451 4638
43,541 72,554
Analysed into: niEA
Non-current JERE - 19
Current RE 43,541 72435
The revenue derived from construction services are mainly made on the terms BEERFOBAFZREEESNZ
of the respective construction contracts. The revenue derived from operation, AR - B Bl R HME S 1ER
management and other sports related services are mainly made on (i) cash on RFBIOUA EE =) & BT H M (i)30
delivery and (ii) credit terms of 30 to 90 days. EIORMEEHAAEL o
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict EEERAREREEELR K&
control over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly B HRERZERERBRERER @
by senior management. In the view of the aforementioned and the fact that the HRREHSREEE T HK BN
Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is tm'l‘a o MUK A B B ) R IGRRIE
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or RARELZTERER FLTEEARE
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are 5 & R B o 74 & B i E U
non-interest-bearing. IBEREER A AT m N EME SIS

AR o FEWGRIEAR 5t B o

SERE (AR EEERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

20.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2021, MetaSpace and Yuedun Zhizao, two subsidiaries of the
Group, endorsed certain bills receivables accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB7,100,000
(equivalent to HK$8,684,000) (2020: RMBI,467,000 (equivalent to HK$1,649,000).
The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to eleven months (2020: two to
ten months) at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of
Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly,
it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the
associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group's
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows
to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the
opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group's Continuing Involvement in the

Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has not recognised
any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both during the year or

cumulatively. The endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.
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20.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

based on the terms set out in the contracts and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

20.

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

FEWTRIR R FEIR R ()

RUWRRIER RS AR RE SO EF
MEABREEREEHEZRE DT

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TBx

Within | year IR 19,129 23983
| to 2 years [Epk:s 7,282 30,151
2to 3 years pEXEH 8,570 12,803
Over 3 years 3EME 109 979
35,090 67,916

The movements in the allowance for credit losses of trade and bills receivables are

RUERERERZENEEEERRE

as follows: BEMT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FTHxT
At beginning of year =) 29,496 23,484
Impairment losses (note 6) HEEE (i) 13,186 4,184
Written off 8 (1,279) =
Exchange realignment QR 1,010 1,828
At end of year FR 42,413 29,496

The increase in the allowance for credit losses for the year ended 31 December

2021 and 2020 was mainly due to several individual customers in default payments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses as well as individually assessed for certain
customers that were with significant default indicators and credit-impaired. The
provision rates are based on the ageing of groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due
for more than five years and are not subject to enforcement activity. The individually
impaired trade receivables related to customers that were credit-impaired or in

default payments and no receivables are expected to be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 0. FREWFEIERERER @)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's TR FEBNERKFENEER
trade receivables: BER
As at 3| December 2021 1R2021% 128318
Ageing
IRi
Less than
| year | to 2 year 2to3year  Over 3 years Total
Category 455 IEMUTF 122 PER}:3 IEME H
Impairment of credit losses assessed by RiEERBASTEZ
a credit risk portfolio EEFRBAHE
Expected credit loss rate LR 5= 5.23% 7.70% 24.76% 92.32% 14.17%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REAE (FEm) 20,185 7,890 11,390 1,419 40,884
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHREEEE (TED 1,056 608 2,820 1,310 5794
Impairment of credit losses assessed Rt 2 EEFBHE
individually
Expected credit loss rate LR 5=k - 100% 100% 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REAE (FEm) - 2523 8,886 25210 36,619
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHREEEE (TED - 2523 8,886 25210 36,619
As at 3| December 2020 7220205128318
Ageing
iRk
Less than [t02 2103 Over3
| year year year years Total
Category 5l 3V [k 123 IELE 45t
Impairment of credit losses assessed by RESRRMASTEZ
a credit risk portfolio EEEBHAE
Expected credit loss rate BHREERER 250% 10.50% 289% 60.00% 1051%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REAME (TAT) 24599 33,688 1,114 1,205 70,606
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHEESS (TER) 616 3537 2,544 m 7420
Impairment of credit losses assessed BRI 2 EEFEHE
individually
Expected credit loss rate BHREEBEX - - 63.59% 96.73% 8235%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REAMHE (TAT) - - 11626 15,180 26806
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHEESS (TE) - - 7393 14683 20076
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE0NF12A31BILEE
21. DEFERRED TAX 21, iRIEFRIA
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows: RIEMIBEEEREEZESHUT !
Deferred tax liabilities: RICRIESE
2021 20215
Fair value
Fair value Fair value adjustments
adjustments adjustments arising from
arising from of equity debt
acquisition investments investments
of subsidiaries at FVPL at FYOCI Total
BAREE
BAREBE HEAHEH
Wi HEBHZH HAHMEZE
WEBAR  AABEZ  WEIEH
Efz KEKEz REE%EZ
ARBEERAE 2Q/BEAR 2[LEERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAET FTAT
At | January 2021 R2021F 1818 55 5 65 125
Deferred tax credited to FARBREAFTAZ
profit or loss during the year EERE (HIE10)
(note 10) (55) (5) 26 (34
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 202011283182
3| December 2021 RIEFRIBE E4A%8 - - 9| 9|
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DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

20, IEERRIE (B

Deferred tax assets: BERIBEE !
2021 20216
Depreciation Loss available
allowance Deferred for offsetting
inexcess  revenueand  Impairment against future
of related deferred o financial Lease Accrued taxable
depreciation costs assets liabilities  purchases profits Others Total
AR
fch EHRR
gz BERAR &REE e R
hEEE  BINE HE HEAR EHEER ZEH# Hfth @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET ThEr  TiEn T#r Tz  TExn Tz TEn
At | January 2021 021 IA1H 1,494 | 464 8,808 89 775 8919 894 2443
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERPERRA/ (1)
to profit or loss during the year ZIEERRIR
(note 10) (FrE10) (107) (553) 1,771 (55) 1,283 (3,759) (569) (1,989)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) ~ HE—RIMBAF (Hz32) - - - (34 - - - (34
Exchange realignment ERBE [ 4 264 - 4l 160 10 521
Gross deferred tax assets at R021% 128312
31 December 2021 ELREEERE 1,388 956 10843 - 2099 5320 335 20941
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

20, EERRIE (8

Deferred tax liabilities: EELERESE
2020 20204F
Fair value
Fair value Fair value adjustments
adjustments adjustments arising from
arising from of equity debt
acquisition investments investments
of subsidiaries at FVPL at FVOCI Total
BAREE
BAREBE SEEHEH
W sEEHEF StAHMEZAE
WERE  stABmz  Wm@ZF/H
Efz REREz REELZ
AABERE R[ABERE KABERE 4mst
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THET THERT THERT THERT
At | January 2020 20201 818 1,703 729 - 2432
Deferred tax credited to FARBHAFTAZ
profit or loss during the year LRI
(note 10) (MzE10) (1,648) (730) — (2378)
Deferred tax charged to FRREMEEWRE AN
other comprehensive income during ZIRIERR I8
the year = = 65 65
Exchange realignment [E R aBEE - 6 - 6
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 120201283182
3| December 2020 ERRESRRE 55 5 65 125
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021F12B31HLEFE
21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 2. RERIE (@)
Deferred tax assets: BERIBEE !
2020 20206
Fair value
adjustments  Depreciation Loss available for
arising from debt allowance in Deferred offsetting against
investments  excess of related revenueand  Impairment of Accrued  future taxable
atFVOCl  depreciation  deferred costs  financial assets  Lease liabilties purchases profts Others Total
BAREE
STEERES
SARMZE AR
Yt 2 5% Bl HEHAR
REETz HRREz  BLUAR TREE feRtER]
MEEEE  NERG BIERA AE  HERRE  EHEE ZEB At st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TER TER TR TER TR TER TER TER
At | January 2020 1R200FIA 1R 1077 1297 4377 5397 172 4928 n 17671
Deferred tax credtedi(charged) ~ ERRBREAFA/
to profit or loss during the year (IB5) 23RIEHIE
(note 10) (HezE10) = 197 (3032) 2967 (%) (4240) i 4663
Deferred tax charged to other ERPEMEERENR
comprehensive income during 2B
the year (1077) - - - - - - (1o77)
Exchange realignment ER:A% = = 19 4 7 8 8 1,186
Gross deferred tax assets at R00E1NA3IBZ
31 December 2020 BEREAERAR - 1494 1464 8508 8 75 894 0483
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset
in the statement of financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

IBIERRE ()

HREREN ETELERBEEKR
EREAEMBRRRPETIRSE -1
R HRS BN EBEERIAE
ERBYDATINE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE T BT R AREED

consolidated statement of financial position RERIBEEFE 20,941 22,443

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the R EM BN RAERZ
consolidated statement of financial position FELERIBE B 91 (125)
20,850 22,318

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$4,248,000 (2020:
HK$6,073,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$178,235,000 (2020: HK$179,610,000) that will

expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that either have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised, or are not expected to generate taxable profits in the foreseeable

future to utilise the tax losses due to changes in operation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) IEERTE ()

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: M IEEERERNIRERIEE & 1 R HE

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Tax losses RIAEE 147,016 129,430

Deductible temporary differences EIEAE S 2,856 3,854

155,272 133,284

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from | January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%.The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries

established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from | January 2008.

RBERE G EMRERZE R RE R
RIZIELEBIIEREEST RN
g S e 121 0% M EAINTRINR o %R
EB2008F 1 BIBEREXN WHEAR
2007 12B3 B2 BMEE RN D
B o MNR B At B4 B I B & PR TE
BlERE B EMRI T AR KA
FEENENRRKE - AEBNBERR
TA5%8K10%° I > AEBBREF
(B0 P 3411 B, 37 A9 3% 3 B 8 A B 3t 2008
FIBIHFEERMNE R ZKREHM
B

IREAXEEXEEARAR
TR -EER

187



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 20, EERRIE (8
At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes 2021128318 B A ERE R
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding P 3 BT B, 32 B /B A B B AR TR R
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion B > B (2] 2 1) P& o B9 TR0 AR B 5T AIE
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will MBE-AXRAEZIR ZEHEA
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. At 31 December 2021, there was R A RARRA KA BE R IKEF] o 1Y
no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2020: nil) for taxes that would be 2021128318 BiELAEENB A
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no Bl FERIRA 2 EBNREMEET
liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted due to the availability of I EARBEDIEERIBER (20204 :
double taxation relief. ®m) O LTREERRER HZEH
BEL AEEBAMBIMIERE
I=SEE
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by AR MERFREREFGSIBE
the Company to its shareholders. IFTSIRER
22.  INVENTORIES 2 #8

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THExT

Raw materials R 8,685 13823

Finished goods Sk 29 28

8714 13,851
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

BARBEEAEESHARME
ERENEREE RARBEHE
BHEHHABRNERNEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Debt investments at fair value through BARBESEEHEFHFA

other comprehensive income HtEERm 2 EHRE

Current i 6,734 23,573
Non-current IERE 6,767 25,073
13,501 48,646

Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss A R BEFFEEEEEHE A

BalNEmEE

Current — wealth management products mE— B Em 50,458 31,759
Current — listed equity investments mE— EmRAKRE 17,710 =
68,168 31,759
Non-current — unlisted equity investment FERB— I LR AKE 2,446 23,791
70,614 55,550

The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income represents

listed corporate bond investments. They were classified as financial assets at FVOCI

as their contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding and they were held within a business model with the

objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. During the

year, the investment income and return from financial assets at FVOCI recognised in

profit or loss and the fair value loss recognised in other comprehensive income or

loss amounted to HK$2,705,000 (2020: HK$5,284,000) and HK$ 16,666,000 (2020:

HK$929,000), respectively.

BAABESEEREEEHTARMS
ARENEMEER EHAREBESE
BomERENHRENREREE
ARERHEREEREF B ARILEZ
BEARBMEHNRERERHENE
BEAFE MABARAABE
ERHEEHAHMEERENEH
BE-FARERBRIANKEELR
BEGIZEEEEHFTAEMZEK
ENEREENRERAKRDER KRR
Hitt2mRE B ERDBNAAEE
K519 B #2,705,000%8 75 (20204 :
5,284,0007 75) Kz 16,666,007 75 (2020
£ 192900078 7T) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included wealth management
products which were issued by major banks in Mainland China, with maturity date
within one year from the date of reporting period, and listed equity investments
trading in the stock exchanges in Hong Kong and Mainland China. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group purchased and disposed of certain debt
investments. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVPL as their

contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

During the year, the investment income and return from financial assets at FVPL
recognised in profit or loss amounted to HK$ 1,919,000 (2020: HK$6,557,000).

The Group's unlisted equity investment represents an equity investment in an
investee (the “Investee”) previously traded on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotation Company (“NEEQ") in the PRC. As at 3| December 2021 and 2020,
the Group holds approximately 0.46% of equity interest in the Investee. The unlisted

equity investment was classified as financial assets at FVPL.

In February 2020, the investee submitted a formal application to the Shanghai Stock
Exchange for the proposed listing of its shares on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board
of Shanghai Stock Exchange (“Application”) and the Application was preliminary
accepted by Shanghai Stock Exchange and the investee delisted its share from
NEEQ in October 2020.

During the year; the investee has decided not to continue with the Application, a
negative investment return arising from the changes in fair value of the unlisted
equity investment recognised in profit or loss amounted to HK$21,708,000 (2020:
negative investment return of HK$2,921,000).
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24.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK BALANCES

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

RIRGISRIT R IR & KSR TARER

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Cash and bank balances & MIRITEEER 79,691 16,547
Restricted bank deposits ZIRBIERITE™N 16,405 26210
96,096 142,757

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (RMB) amounted to HK$75,022,000 (2020:
HK$91,640,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland Chinas Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's restricted bank deposits of
HK$ 14,881,000 (2020 : HK$26,210,000) were pledged to secure the bill payables
with maturity date within one year from the date of reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's restricted bank deposits of
HK$1,524,000 (2020 : Nil) were restricted for use in relation to outstanding
litigations commenced by a supplier in Mainland China against a subsidiary of the
Group for alleged default in payment of outstanding sub-contracting fees in an
aggregate amount of RMBI1,085,915 (equivalent to HK$1,328,000) and all related
interests and expenses. The subsidiary filed a counter-claim against the supplier for
damages and compensation due to the project delay and poor quality of work
performed by the supplier The cases were either dismissed by the Court or settled
after the end of the reporting period. The sub-contracting fees were recognised
as trade payables and the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
provision of related interests and expenses for the above litigations is sufficient in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021.

RBESHA ZEBUARE (TA
EE)HFENRERBTEGS
75,022,00078 75 (20204 : 91,640,0007
7T cCARBAEEHRBBRAEME
o ST > IR B PE A (HMME B IR 1K
B R (EE S EERNEEERE)
AEBERZBERESSIHEEE 2
RITRARB RGN EMER

RTREBRBEESHRTERA X
BZFBHARERIA R - RITHEERD
RN EARENCHEMAGEN
RfTo

RESHFR KEBENZREIRTE
14,881,00078 7T (20204 : 26,210,0007
7o) BRI MBI A RS E
HE—FERNREN 2R ERRo

REBESHR AEBENZRERTE
21,524,0005 7T (20204 : #%) IR &S
Bt BEAEREN BB AR
B Py i B9 — R B R IR R OR
Tk EPIEBZNB AR K (T4E%E
AE#1,0859157c (FHEF 1,328,000
7T) ARG D BEUKRFEEEFNER
ER -ZMEBARAREEFRE TR
B BRHEHBEREBERRHEER
TEEEEMEMNEBEAREE R
BERRE ZERGEBARRKD
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AMEBAMERRNETR Eih R
RN S RESEETEES

IREAXEEXEEARAR
TR -EER

191
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

25.  TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES % EARAERENERE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting RIBESHR REEZHHANEITH
period, based on the invoice date or issue date, is as follows: HEHNEORIBEREMNZHRNRER
AMMT

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within | month KEVERPE 16,237 30,680

| to 2 months | E2(8 8 15,423 13732

2 to 3 months 2E3MER 7,127 13992

Over 3 months JEB L E 39,253 32,325

78,040 90,729
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing, The trade payables are ENREBERECTEEA TR EY
normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days upon receipts of suppliers invoices, while RE—RAEREEEEEEREIE
bills payable are normally settled on terms of 90 to 180 days upon issuance of bills. O A MENRE—RANE

TEIEEIOE 1808 AT o
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS % HttFEITRIEREtER

2021 2020

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

Myt FTHET FHET

Contract liabilities BHERE () & (b) 16,147 22916

Deposits received Bitige 580 1,079

Other payables HAtnpE I IE (© 17,608 32,045

Accruals BSHER 23,586 30,408

Total wmst 57,921 86,448

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

1 92 ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Cont’d) % HtFEFIEREAER @)
Notes: st
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @ BNEEFENT:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAET THET

Short-term advances received from customers ENEF 2R

Air dome construction services RIRBERT 15,985 19,822
Operation and management services and other SERBEERBE UK
sports and entertainment services HAEEE K 18 24AR 7S 162 3033
Sales of goods HEEM - 61
Total contract liabilities EE=NEREEE 16,147 22916
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver goods and render BNBEBEIRNER RER
air dome construction and operation and management services. fR 223G AR 75 e ' 18 T B T AR %5 Y
HYFEHAEARR o
(b)  Movements in contract liabilities are as follows: (b) BHEBEBHWT:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THERT
At beginning of year F4] 22916 7022
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of HEt AFENEEZ FREREN
recognising revenue during the year that was aHEERLD

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning

of the year (22,107) (3.210)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of advanced FEUENE B R EBRERERS LB EIEMN
consideration received from customers 15,338 19,104
At end of year FR 16,147 22916
() Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of one year.  EMENREBERSE FHHERS
—fFo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE0NF12A31BILEE
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 7. EHRIRITREMER
2021 2020
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$000
- TIES) 55 THT  BRAE® 55 Thn
Current i
Bank loans-secured (note2)  RITER B (izk) LPR+0915- 200 10,164 LPR+0915 201 368
LPR+1.075 W0NE W1E
Bank loans-secured (noteb)  SRATEF— B (i5k) LPR-045 202 .23 -
0N
Other borrowing-unsecured HtE—ERE (5 0 On demand 3355 0 On demand 3260
(note ¢) BREX BEX
Other borrowingunsecured ~ EftfE TR — BT 1R = 435 On demand 238
BEX
25,750 6,766
Non-current 00
Bank loans-secured (note ) SRITEF B 1R (zh) LPR+0915 203 13,589 LPR+0915 2003 30592
-LPR#1.375 WBE LPR+1.375 NEE
W03E
39339 37358
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 7. StESRITREMERR @
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTHExT
Analysed into: A=
Bank loans repayable: FEEERITEM .
Within one year —&FR 22,395 3,268
After one year —&ENE 13,589 30,592
35,984 33,860
Other borrowings repayable: EEZSHMEN
Within one year or on demand —FERFEEXK 3,355 3498
39,339 37,358

Notes:

The Group's secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period were secured by
mortgages over the Group's right-of-use assets (note 14) and buildings (note 12) with
an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting period of approximately
HK$24,073,000 and HK$65,745,000, respectively (2020: HK$ HK$23,894,000 and
HK$66,383,000, respectively). The bank loans bore interest rate with reference to the
loan prime rate (“LPR") promulgated by the National Interbank Funding Center under
the authority of the People’s Bank of China.

The Group's secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period were guaranteed
by independent financing guarantee company. The fee charged by the independent
financing guarantee company was recognized in profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2021.The guarantee provided by the independent financing guarantee
company was secured by mortgages over the Group's building with an aggregate
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period of approximately HK$ 1,140,000
(2020: Nil) and guaranteed by a director of the subsidiary. The bank loans bore interest
rate with reference to the LPR promulgated by the National Interbank Funding Center
under the authority of the People’s Bank of China.

The balance represents a loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Group, the balance is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

All of the Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB.

FsE

@

FEBRBREHRZEBART
EXRAEENEREEE (M
14) BRIEF (fiEE12) (RIBESHF
Z BRE4RE D B A 4924,073,0008 7T
5265,745,0008 75 (20204 : 935
23,894,00078 7T 566,383,000/ 7T) ) 3%
BIEE - BITERNMNESEHRE
ARSBITTENZRRTERER
BHRLEHRNERERFE (TER
BRI ) o

AEBNREHRZHBIRBRTE
HEHBUMEERADER B
YREERATDWERNEBERE
FXIENAHILEEERER

RoBIUMBEERARRBNER
UREBBFRIBERT KRS
HASREBREAB/E491,140,00078 7T (2020
F8E) O TARBADESER R
TEFNHEZEGRRAARETT
EN2EIRTEREREPOEM
WERERAR.

ERAAEENBRBFERRR
RENER > 2@ EER T5t
BRARERER-
FEEMEERIUARBHE.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE20211F1283NALEE
28. SHARE CAPITAL B RE
Shares Rz 5
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Authorised: ETE
4,000,000,000 (2020:4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each (20204 : 4,000,000,0008%)
FREE00SETHNERER 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRBHMZE
1,408,019,000 (2020: 1,302,019,000) ,408,019,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each (20204 : 1,302,019,0008%)
SREB0SETHNEER 7,040 6510
A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows: EABNRAETHEMT .
Number of Share
shares in issue capital
B&17
Rix%E 2
HK$'000
THET
At | January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 12202051 B 18 20205 12831 B &
| January 2021 20211 BIH 1,302,019,000 6510
Issue of shares (note) BITRA (5D 106,000,000 530
At 31 December 202 120215123318 1,408,019,000 7,040
Note: Mzt
On || February 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of further 20% interests in a R2021F28 11 B » XABIESTHE—F
subsidiary. The consideration was settled by the allotment and issue of 106,000,000 ordinary BN —REM B A B #20%# i o (BB B R
shares of the Company measured at closing market price on completion date of HK$0.17 per B K 3217/ 8] 106,000,00008 E @R (325
share. Bt BEAM I E S RR0. 7B T 8) A E o
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29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the

success of the Group's operations.

The share option scheme (“Old Scheme”) became effective on 3 December
2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date. Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2021, the Company approved
the termination of Old Scheme and adoption of new share option scheme (“New
Scheme”). The New Scheme will be expired on |7 June 2031 if not be terminated

by any general meeting earlier.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers
of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company's

shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder in the Company's subsidiaries.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
| 2-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders'

approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any |2-month period, are

subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

29.

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021E12A31HILEE
29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) 9. FERESE @
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 2| days from the date RUBREZZNAIN BN B’
of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$ ! in total by the grantee. RXNHEABASZNLGERESGEE
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, TEFTLUIER -FIRHEBREZITRE
and commences after a vesting period of one to three years and ends on a date AHHEEET IR —E=-45H8
which is not later than five years from the date of offer of the share options or the HERs kRAEREREZLNH
expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier. HREst A F 95t 8l B Hi A (AR
FERE) o
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be BREZOTFEEHESET ELE
less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares BRUTZRSE (AN RBEROILE
on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing BREEBOBBMEMIMZBHE; &
price of the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the (NVERABRNRERZRZEN BRI EE
date of offer. R BEMZZ FHERHE.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at RN AT RA AMER RN
shareholders” meetings. PEDN-E-EPA i
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year: MNTAERRESE HRITEZER
T’
2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MiETH MiET
TEE BREHE TeE EBREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ 000
per share per share
BRAET T BRAT T
At | January RIAIA 0.764 37,025 0.764 37,025
Lapsed during the year FRRM 0.764 (293) = =
At 31 December K12A318 0.764 36,732 0.764 37,025
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29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The exercise price and exercise period of the share options outstanding as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

At 31 December 2021
F20214 128315

Number of options Exercise price*

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

fEictEstal (@
REEHAR AARTERREZITE
BRITEHOT

Exercise period

R EHE TEE 1T1EHR
‘000 HK$
per share
8% EBRAT

note

36,732 0.764 MizE

At 31 December 2020
720208 12831 H

Number of options Exercise price*

Exercise period

fElREHE TReBE* 171
‘000 HK$
per share
T gET

note

37,025 0.764 Myt

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.

Note:

The first 30% of the options granted were vested in one year from 8 April 2016; the second
40% of the options granted were vested in two years from 8 April 2016 and the remaining
30% of the options granted were vested in three years from 8 April 201 6. Upon the lapse of
the vesting period, the share options are exercisable until 7 April 2026.

During the year, the Group did not recognise any share option expense in respect of share
options granted (2020: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 36,732,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 36,732,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of approximately HK$184,000 (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 36,732,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately 2.61% of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date.

© EREZTEENSEARRET
ARAAEATRAZ E B RS
IEED

BT

B H 2 30%BREE 201 6F488HE
St—ERRB FH B ZA%ERES
1R20165E4 B8 B REST M & BB » MR TR
HZ30%EREER2016FE4A8HE =F
NET B o BRI NE  BREEE2026
F487HH AT

FER AEBTERKHNERERDE
AR (20205 : &) o

R|BSER > N A BRI E]5E36,732,000
DEREERTE - REAQARDRITER
ER BEOERRTENBERERER
2£1736,732,00008 A5/ B) BB YN 1B IR R FE AN
AR #9184,00078 7T (NPREETTRISZAD ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on

pages 79 to 80 of the financial statements.

(a)  Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents (i) the differences between the considerations
of equity transactions and the corresponding carrying amounts of non-
controlling interests; and (i) the differences between the nominal amount
of share capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of share
capital of the then subsidiaries transferred to the Company pursuant to the

reorganisation of the Group that took place in 201 I.

(b)  Statutory and legal reserves
Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies are required
to allocate 10% of their net profit to the fund until such fund reaches 50%
of their registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses or
to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is

maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies registered capital.

(c)  Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised or transferred to accumulated losses should the

related options expire.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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31,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 3.

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests are set

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

BREAIFEREREDEEIE
AT

FEENBARBEREERFFERE

out below: @ BREFEEINNT
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE7 FHR
Percentage of equity interests held FFERE R IRER D LE(%)
by non-controlling interests (%)
Swift Knight Limited Swift Knight Limited - 20%
Zhong Hu Sports TEER 48.34% 48.34%
Effective interest held by -non-controlling IR R B R T (%) (5
interests (%) (note) 48.34% 58.67%
Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling DEEFERERNFREE
interests (HK$000) (FE70) (1,767) (22,243)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests  JEIZERREE 1N 3R S HAAR M R 5T 45 ER
at the end of the reporting period (HK$'000) (F#E7m) 93,564 93,173
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 3.

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Cont'd)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of above

companies and its subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

BEEAFERESNIEIEEHE
YNINC=))

TRIR LM AR A B A BN
BERNBE -MEESBARETHE

eliminations: A B EHHERINEEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue iz 213,357 115384
Total cost and expenses AR (244,841) (158415)
Loss for the year FREE (31,484) (43,031)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEBRE (31,434) (41,562)
Current assets RBEE 353,580 313,255
Non-current assets FERBEE 384,099 190,784
Current liabilties hEBas (512,745) (431,952)
Non-current liabilities FERBERE (6,028) (43,441)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities &8 &EBFT1S,/ (FT ) e RS T (27,947) (44,325)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities REFEME/ A REREFEE 24,209 34937
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities ~ BRE EEIFTIS,/ (FTA) RERE2 34 734 27719)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMEEE RSB T BPEE 474 (4,354)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents IR& RIREFBYILM, Cii/L) F 48 (2,530) (41461)

Note:

On Il February 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of further 20% interests in
Swift Knight Limited as disclosed in note 28.Therefore, as at 31 December 2021, The Group
holds 100% equity interest in Swift Knight Limited and indirectly holds 51.66% equity interest
in MetaSpace (which, together with its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the air dome-
related business and sports stadium operation).

As at 3| December 2020. The Group holds 80% equity interest in Swift Knight Limited and
indirectly holds 41.33% equity interest in MetaSpace and its subsidiaries.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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R2021F28 | 1B XABI R E— T WE
Swift Knight Limitedf920%8E 5 (5 Hi 55281
B) At #2020E 128318 AEEFE
Swift Knight Limitedf) 2 &R A& 1 » Wt I I%H5 5
HBRRYS | .66%R1E (WIREREMB AR E
EREREEMERREREEE o

12020 12831 B » AEBEFASwift Knight
LimitedFI80% A% 8 » i 5] #2255 7 4948 e ELBf
[B/R BIRI41 33%ALHE o



32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

R HEMBAT

2021
HK$000
F#ERT
Net assets disposed of: BHEBETE
Property, plant and equipment (note 12) ME R E KR (REEI2) 1,837
Right-of-use assets (note 14(a)) EREEE (5E14(@) 9,796
Goodwill (note 15) EEAGELR) 8,554
Deferred tax assets (note 21) FIERIEEE (f5E21) 34
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAnEEFEEHEHFABEN
TREE 963
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHEER 633
Other payables and accruals HtnE s IE K s & A (3,903)
Lease liabilities (note 14) HEaE (aE14) (9,748)
Non-controlling interests JEER R (2,673)
5,493
Reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve upon RUEBIEBFRENDE
disposal of foreign operation INERR 5 e 152
Total 485 5,645
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 5) HE—FEM B ABMEHIE (MEE5) 1,573
Satisfied by: A
Cash R& 7,218

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal

of subsidiaries is as follows:

BRLENBAENREERREEE
MIBSRAZEDHNT

2021
HK$'000
FTHET
Cash consideration REAE 7218
Less: Cash and bank balances disposed of B BHERERIBITER (633)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of ERLENBABZRE K
the disposal of a subsidiary REEBYMRAFH 6,585
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@)  Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$4,401,000 and
HK$4,401,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for buildings.

(b)  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2021

3. FERSRERMEE
@ BEXEREXRS
HE20F 12831 BEEE
rEEEREBFHELHNGE
EREENTEGBRZIER
SREDRIA4,401,000%8 7T K&
440100078 7T °

b) MEEZHELENREED

20214

Interest—bearing

bank and other Lease
borrowings liabilities

sRIR1T
HtfEwx HERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET
At | January 2021 R2021E 1818 37,358 19,946
Changes from financing cash flows RERERELH (1,089) (2922)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) HE—FEREAE (MEE32) - (9,748)
Foreign exchange movement SN B [,102 413
Interest expense F BRI 1,968 l,138
At 31 December 202 | 12021128318 39,339 8,827

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS B, FERESHRERMNEE @B

(Cont’d)
(b)  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (Cont d) b) RMEIBEENEEEEH B
2020 20205
Interest—bearing
bank and other Lease
borrowings liabilities
it BIR1T
Htf&™m HEaR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TBx
At | January 2020 120201 B 1H 56,080 21,935
Changes from financing cash flows REREREEE (25421) (5779)
New leases e - 4,401
Termination of a lease RIFEE = (2,769)
Foreign exchange movement ANEE - 3,851 1,272
Interest expense FERHZ 2,848 1,561
Covid-19-related rent concessions REHBANEREEEEERER
from lessors - (675)
At 31 December 2020 12020128318 37,358 19,946
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12831HILEE
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 33 ZAHE&RERKEE B
(Cont’d)
(c)  Total cash outflow for leases: (c THERESRULLLEEE:
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows is as FABREREXRNEERERN
follows: HABRETT ¢
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Within operating activities K& EFH 615 333
Within financing activities REEEH 2,922 5779
3,537 6,112
34. COMMITMENTS M4 EiE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting

AEERREHRNEREENT

period:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Contracted, but not provided for: BETHNERES
Property, plant and equipment ME-BRERSZE 4,099 6,553
Capital contributions payable to an associate Em—EHEATEE 4,281 4,160
8,380 10,713

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the

Group had the following transactions with related parties:

35.

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

RRE T 35
BRREVERREMEHFL IS
Sy REBEREM A ETUTRS

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: FEBTEEEASH
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET THET
Short-term employee benefits RHESRN 2,354 2,186
Post-employment benefits EERBEN 123 90
2477 2276

Further details of the directors’ and the chief executive's emoluments are included

in note 8 to the financial statements.

BREERTBTHASMEZE—
PN R e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12831BLEE
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3% ERITRER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end FRANERMIARREHRZREE
of the reporting period are as follows: I
2021 2021
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at ~ Financial assets
fair value at fair value
through through other
profit or loss  comprehensive
— designated as income Financial
such upon initial — debt assets at
recognition investments ~ amortised cost Total
BRAREE BRARGEE
HERHEE HERHEH
FAREZ sAHEM
EHMEE 2EWE g
—HRHERE ZERMEE Gt E
fEHBRIETE -EBRE ZEWMEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Financial assets at FVPL BARBEFEEHEES
HABHEZEHMEE 70,614 - - 70614
Financial assets at FVOCI BAnBEFEEHEES
SARMEEKGZ
TRHEE - 13,501 - 13,501
Bills receivable at FVOCI BAnBEFEEHEES
SARMEEKGZ
BWEE - 845 - 8,451
Trade receivables FEUWERIE - - 35,090 35,090
Financial assets included in SATBARIE EtifEUk
prepayments, other MEREMEEZ &
receivables and other assets WEE - - 60,491 60,491
Restricted bank deposits SIRHIRITER - - 16,405 16,405
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHER - - 79,691 79,691
70,614 21,952 191,677 284,243

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd) % ERITRER @

2021 (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost

2021 4E (48)
PHEE-BENE T EZEHEE

Total
st
HK$'000
FHERT

Trade and bills payables
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Lease liabilities

TR IR R B R 78,040
STARMEMNRERENERAZ EREE 18,188
st RIRITREMEN 39,339
HEER 8,827

144,394

IREAXEEXEEARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12831HIEEE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont’d) 3% EMIAER @
2020 20204
Financial assets THEE

Financial assets

Financial assets

at fair value at fair value
through through other
profit orloss  comprehensive
— designated as income Financial
such upon initial — debt assets at
recognition investments amortised cost Total
BRREE BRAEE
STEEHEE SEEHEH
stABmZ STAHA
THMEE 2EKEZ Y
=R THEE A8
fEBRIEE —-RHRE ZEHEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAT TAT
Financial assets at FVPL BRARBEGEEHES
SABHZEMEE 55,550 - - 55,550
Financial assets at FVOCI BRARBEGEEHES
SARMEERTRZ
THEE - 48,646 - 48,646
Bills receivable at FVOCI BAABESERHEY
SARMEERGZ
BUERE - 4638 - 4638
Trade receivables WA - - 67916 67916
Financial assets included in STABMRIE ERER
prepayments, other MIEREMEERN
receivables and other assets ERMEE = = 27,756 27,756
Restricted bank deposits SIRHIRITER - - 26210 26210
Cash and bank balances R RIR1TA AR = - 116547 116,547
55,550 53,284 238429 347,263

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
21 0 ANNUAL REPORT 2021



36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd) 36 SRTREN @

2020

Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost

20204
THEE— LA EZ T HEE

Total
A5t
HK$'000
TAT

Trade and bills payables
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Lease liabilities

TR IR R B R 90,729
STARMEMNRERENERAZ EREE 33,124
st RIRITREMEN 37358
HEER 19,946

181,157

IREAXEEXEEARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank balances, restricted
bank deposits, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, trade and bills payables and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts

largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's chief financial officer is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each

reporting date, the valuation is approved by the chief financial officer:

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and

assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of bills receivable has been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,

credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted market prices

provided by broker/financial institutions in the over-the-counter markets.

The fair values of wealth management products included in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss have been determined by the income approach mainly

based on their principal amounts and expected return rates at inception.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment as at 3| December 2021 has been
estimated using a market approach by a number of significant unobservable
inputs including the market value of invested price to sales (P/S) multiple and
adjustment for a lack of marketability associated with the investment. The Group had
engaged an external valuation expert on 3| December 202 with the recognised

professional qualifications and recent experience to perform valuation.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment as at 3| December 2020 has been
estimated using a market approach through the use of comparable companies’
market multiples. The valuation requires the directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, and to calculate an appropriate price
multiple, that is, enterprise value to research and development expenses (EV/R&D)
multiple to calculate the enterprise value of the target enterprise. The enterprise
value was adjusted by the surplus, non-operating assets and excess liabilities to
arrive an equity value of the target enterprise, which was then discounted by
consideration of lack of liquidity compared to the comparable companies based on

investment-specific facts and circumstances.

The directors believe that the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation
technique, which is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and
the related change in fair values, which is recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable,

and that it was the most appropriate value at the end of the reporting period.

37.

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

EMIRZANBERANEERR
=)
LtHERAREZRABEDRETS
REEE -

R2021F 128318 FELTRAKREZ
NABBEEERALEEARIRE
BAHE OEREERHHE (PS)
NHEEHREEAZEERZ TG
BUEEL 2 BB A ET AT
AEBEBER2021FE 1283 HEFAR
RAEXERBITAERELSR
HEEERETRRME

K200 128318 FELTRAKEZ
NABEEBRAALABNTIZEG
BEmGAEThE - HEERES
RETEREAILE EHAE (AF) -
Wt EBEENEREH CEEEEY
MEERaSZ (EV/RED) KIfSED) » LGt B B
BEXNEEEE PEEBBEERE
FKEEERBEEBRELAZ MU
ERERPENRABE HERE
REBERENZENERLLEZEIER
AL RABRZ AN  HEXEBEE
b ok

EERN BEREVMHTRRERP AR
MEERTEENGF R ABENR
AR PARNBFANEEESE
GEN TEEMBRREMAREE
MEE.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 37.
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy
The fair value of unlisted equity investment as at 3|1 December 2021 was
determined by the management based on the valuation performed by an

independent professional qualified valuer:

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

EMITAZARBERAAEBERER
#

AREERER

20215128318 FEEmREREN
ARBEHEEERBEBEIEXSHE
HEMETHNHRERE

12021 52020 12831 B EREE
PREDMEENERTATRREA
YIEHENT

Valuation Significant unobservable  Value of significant Sensitivity of
technique inputs unobservable inputs  fair value to the inputs
EATHBER BEATABER
fE{E M BWARR WARIREE ARBEBBABRNBRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average P/S 16 5% increase/decrease in multiple
investment multiples multiple of peers (2020: 49) would result in increase/decrease
FELETRARE HE[FEH (2020: Average EV/R&D (20204 : 49) in fair value by HK$ 117,000
multiple of peers) (2020: HK$ 1, 166,000)
R T 1P/SEH EEUEM,/ 5% B
(2020%F : AT ARBEEIM, B 170008 7T
EVIR&DEE) (20204 : 1,166,000 7T)
Discount for lack of 13% [% increase/decrease in discount
liquidity (2020: 16%) would result in decrease/increase
TRZ B TR (20204 : 16%) in fair value by HK$27,000

The discount for lack of liquidity represents the amounts of premiums and discounts
determined by the Group that market participants would take into account when

pricing the investment.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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(2020: HK$268,000)
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37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 3|1 December 202 |

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

3. EWMIRZARBERAABERER
@
ARBERR
TRITAEBEEMIAZAREE
STEER

BAREBEFEZEE .
R20214% 128318

Fair value measurement using

ERUTRAETANEEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RiEE EXURZR EARRA
hiZRIRE BAHRE BRHANE
(F118) ($2/8) (53/8) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTHET FTHEx FTHET
Debt investments at FVOCI BANEEFERH
St AHMEE
w2z BEBRE = 13,501 - 13,501
Financial assets at FVPL BANBEEFERH
St A Bm
TREE 17710 50,458 2446 70,614
Bills receivable at FVOCI BANEEFERH
St AHMEE
Wi 2 IR R - 845 - 845
17710 72410 2,446 92,566
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 37 SHIAEZAABERAABEESR

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) @

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd) ARBERKR &)

Assets measured at fair value: (Cont'd) BARBENEZEE . (B)
As at 31 December 2020 1220206128318

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTEBETANEEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WER BATEE  BARE
FEMBRE  BAKE BEHARE

=) (ZE208) (F38) #E5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET FHET FHET
Debt investments at FVOCI BARBESERER
gt AHMERE

Wz EHRE - 48,646 - 48,646
Financial assets at FVPL BARBESERER

gEst ABmm

EMEE - 31,759 23791 55,550
Bills receivable at FVOCI BARBESERER
gt A HMERE

Wi 2 IR R - 4638 - 4638

- 85,043 23791 108,834

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 37.

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are as

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

EMIRZANBERANEERR
t=)

RREBERESR B
FABBAABEFAENEIHUWT !

follows:
2021 2020
202148 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Equity investment at FVPL: BAnEBEFEEHEHFTA
BmzRAKE !
At | January RIAIH 23,791 25,203
Amount recognised in other expenses and StABENREMAS K
losses included in profit or loss (note 5) BiERR 2 &8 (M55) (21,708) (2921)
Exchange realignment PER A 363 1,509
At 31 December 128318 2,446 23791

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 3|
December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
| 'and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2020: ni).

2021512831 B 520205128318 ¢
AEBTETARALBENEZ S
E=EEE

ERN SREERSHEABRESIBR
BB HAHEERAABEE N
A NEHEIE (20206F @ &) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R FS IR R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE20211F1283NALEE

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank balances,
debt investments and financial assets at FVPL. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade and

bills payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and

agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group'’s policy is
to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

38.

BB EEEEERREER

AEEZIESMTIAGQRRE MR
TG BHEREURRANEES
ERHEYSt A\ Ba EMEE &%
FEMIAZTRENDNAEEERZ
2RESEEZ FAEREZEAMS
MEERGRE MEBRERERE
BURBAREREMRE 252
MEERBENERELEHEE

FEBSMIAZIZRARATER
B NERK EERARKABETR
B-BEEERANAEEESRSA
8 2 BRI BT T3 o

FIEAR
AEEARNTHNELDAREE
RASENTEEREN AEEN
BEARBEERIEERESEE
HRI B

TEMRER AT 2R TR
ERT A& mBRAS B2 AIZN
T AREBNHEE M (BBET

SERNTE) o

Increase/
(decrease)
in loss
before tax
BRI RIS R
sgm, (e
HK$'000
TET
2021 20214
Increase in 100 basis points 110100 L 334
Decrease in 100 basis points 100 Rh (334)
2020 20205
Increase in 100 basis points 1101 00 2y 339
Decrease in 100 basis points B 1 00E 2L (339)

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the group entities’
functional currency. The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks also related to
bank balances denominated in and debt investments denominated in United States
Dollars (USD). The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy as management considers its exposure is not significant. It manages its foreign

currency risk by closely monitoring the movements in the foreign currency rates.

The Group operates mainly in the PRC with most of the transactions settled in
RMB, management considers that the business is not exposed to any significant
foreign exchange risk as there are no significant financial assets or liabilities of the
Group are denominated in the currencies other than the respective functional

currencies of the Group's entities.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign exchange risk between US$ and HK$

as they are linked between each other under the Linked Exchange Rate System.

Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk
based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information
unless other information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end
staging classification as at 31 December. For debt investments, the Group also
monitors them by using external ratings. The amounts presented are gross carrying

amounts for financial assets.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 38 BiFEMEEEIEREEK @)
(Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont’d) ERRE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Cont'd) RAAGRERFEXEE (B)
As at 3| December 2021 720215128318
|2-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A
EEHHE FRERAEEFR
Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
2] (129) ReE3 LR oS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
FET TAT TAL TET FET
Debt investments at FVOC| BRANBEEEHED
sSARMEEREZ
EBERE 5,656 - 7,845 - 13,501
Contract assets BNEE - - - 103,023 103,023
Trade receivables* ihENER - - - 77,503 77,503
Bills receivable RNEE 8451 - - - 8451
Financial assets included in BN REREN il
prepayments, other receivables B REMEEN R
and other assets BE
— Normal** —EE* 62,385 - - - 62,385
— Doubtful** — ke - - - - -
Restricted bank deposits and RRERTESAR
cash and bank balances ReRRTHER
— Not yet past due — KB 96,096 - - - 96,096
172,588 - 7,845 180,526 360,959
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HE2021F12831HIEEE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 38 BiHEMEBEEEIEREE @)
(Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont'd) ERRE (#)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Cont’d) RAAGRERFEXEE (B)
As at 31 December 2020 72020 12831 H
[2-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A &5
FEBA GEBRBEERSA
Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
359 F2Ex2 BEER3 Xl abs st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TEx TER TET TET
Debt investments at FVOC| BAAEEFERHES
SARMEEREZ
BERE 40610 7179 857 - 48,646
Contract assets* BHBEE = - - 103,052 103,052
Trade receivables* ihENER - - - 97412 97412
Bills receivable BHEE 4638 = = = 4638
Financial assets included in EPNEIERERE il
prepayments, other receivables  FUBREMEEMN
and other assets SREE
— Normal** —EE* 27,756 - - - 27,756
— Doubtful** — ke - - 30,525 - 30,525
Restricted bank deposits and RRERTESAR
cash and bank balances RE KRR
— Not yet past due — KB 142,757 - - - 142,757
215761 7179 31,382 200,464 454,786
& For contract assets and trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified b RAEBERBTRELSEZNELN

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note |9 and 20 to the financial statements.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets is considered to be normal when they are not past due and there
is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be doubtful.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising
from contract assets and trade receivables are disclosed in notes 19 and 20 to the

financial statements.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
222 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

*%

BERBWSE REZERFERER
ROER M BRI 19Kk208K

Zo

sFATRNMRIE HttEWRIER A
MEENEREEESRGH B
EERBTRZSEMEEBNRE
REEERBEE L7 AMHEEE
BERERER TR SRMEEN
EEEERRAFRE -

AEBREGNEENBUREELN
FERBMONE—FEECHE K
B SRR M 3 19 R 208 Bz o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 FE IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 38 BiFEMEEEIEREEK @)
(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk MEEERE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity AEERBRERERABUASIAER
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and ExRERER 2TAREEELERM
financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from TAREmEE BIRBHRIERERE
operations. B NARB hEREEELENR

REREeo

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and AEENERERBERTREMBEN
flexibility through bank and other borrowings and a loan from a related party. MUKk Bk ERURERENFE

BEEER T

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting FEEEREBENRSHRERITER
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: &R R ER EIEREARR DATA0 T -
2021
On demand
or within | year Over | year Total
BERR
R—&FR —&E)E #st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHET F#ERT
Trade and bills payables FEAT IR K BT R 4% 78,040 - 78,040
Financial liabilities included in sTAE MBI RIER
other payables and accruals FEsTERNEMERE 18,188 - 18,188
Interest-bearing bank and 5t BIR1T R EMAERR
other borrowings 26,830 14,773 41,603
Lease liabilities HE&E 1,252 15,360 16,612
124,310 30,133 154,443
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 38.

MERREEBRREE @

(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) REEZEE (8)
2020
On demand
or within | year Over | year Total
BEXRE
R—FRA —FLE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TBT
Trade and bills payables DR ES 90,729 = 90,729
Financial liabilities included in other sTAE MBI RIER
payables and accruals s ERNEMERE 33,124 = 33,124
Interest-bearing bank and stRIBITREMMEMN
other borrowings 8356 32,158 40514
Lease liabilities HE&E 3458 26373 29,831
135,667 58,53 194,198
Price risk B E s

The Group's financial assets at FVCOI and FVPL (note 23) are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
equity and debt price risk. The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a

portfolio of investments with difference risk profiles.

At 31 December 2021, if the prices of the debt investments increase/decrease by
| 0%, the fair value gain/loss of approximately HK$ 1,127,000 (2020: HK$4,062,000)

would be recognised in other comprehensive income or loss.

At 31 December 2021, if the prices of the equity investments increase/decrease by
1 0%, the fair value gain/loss of approximately HK$ 1,638,000 (2020: HK$ 1,784,000)

would be recognised in profit or loss.
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RERAnBES A BNEREE (1
223) RERERRRANEEE-
At FEBREREREHERE
R BEEERRATRARZKRE
GEEIERRE

20215128318 MEBKEERKE
/B 0% AR EERE BB
1,127,0007 7 (20204 : 4,062,0007 7T)
TR EMEEm KRB B PR

2021128318 R AR EBIRIY
i/ w10% AR EERE BEA
1,638,0007 75 (20204F : 1,784,00038 7T)
W IB P HEsT o



38.

39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 ¥R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE2021F12B31HLEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 38 BiEMEEBEREE @
(Cont’d)
Capital management BEXER
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the FEEEABEZIZARAEARR
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios EERBEERERRRERLEN
in order to support its business and maximise shareholders value. BRI UAHEBRESIFRARR
HREAEE
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of AEBEEEBARE UHRLER
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. MR BB EN R R EEEFHE
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend B AEEEFABAKRRIKE 2K
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The B RRRBEERY BTG UL
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes MEAABREAGEE NEEBERE
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the STEMIMIEERRTE c REE2021F12
years ended 3| December 202 and 3| December 2020, B3I AR2020E1A3 I BIEEETE
HEREARER BRIBREFH
The Group monitors capital using the ratio of total liabilities to total assets. The FEBFRAREERUEEEZ LR
ratios of total liabilities to total assets as at the end of the reporting periods were as BEEA -NREHER BaBRIUE
follows: BEZHEERNT:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH FET
Total liabilities mE R 194,877 244,608
Total assets REE 557,610 653,854
Ratio EEZR 35% 37%
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 3. EBREE
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to current year's ATHEREBEEMDEURSAE
presentation. EEL I
ITREEXEEZEEERAE

TR -EER
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40.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 0.

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

the reporting period is as follows:

FRABZMBRRE

ERABRBERRZM BRI RER

me:

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN Y E 4 4
Investments in subsidiaries RHEB AR ZIRE 21,808 3,588
Debt investments at fair value through BARBETEEEEEHA
other comprehensive income HthemhalNEHRkgs 6,767 25073
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE - 773
Total non-current assets ERHEELE 28,579 29,438
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries KB AT IS 269,801 293,192
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets EATIE EfthER e R E Mt E E 218 170
Equity investments at fair value through BAnEBEFEEHEHFTA
other comprehensive income HhemW s R ARG E 6,734 23573
Debt investments at fair value through BARBETEEEEEHA
profit or loss BENEREE 14,868 =
Cash and bank balances H& R iR1T45ER 19,710 27455
Total current assets BB ERE 311,331 344,390
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd) 4. ZATZHIFHRRE @

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T8
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Due to subsidiaries ENHB AT I 13,576 13,576
Other payables and accruals Hth MBS E A 2,371 1,929
Tax payable FE(THRIE 1,784 784
Total current liabilities ik =R E] 17,731 17,289
NET CURRENT ASSETS TS ERE 293,600 327,101
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES WEERRESAE 322,179 356,539
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 91 -
Net assets BEFE 322,088 356,539
EQUITY L
Share capital (note 28) IR (FffzE28) 7,040 6,510
Reserves (note) ik (D) 315,048 350,029
Total equity WtEn 322,088 356,539
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)  40. ZFATZMBIRAR B

Note: 5T

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RAEMEERRNT
Fair value
reserve of

Share-based

financial assets
at fair value
through other

Share payment comprehensive Accumulated
premium reserve income losses Total
BRAREE
StEEHEH
StAHMPE
LUBRAR 7% Wiz
EHERY EWMEE
RRADEE REE [AREERE REtEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THET FHET FHET FHET
Balance at | January 2020 720204 | B | B B 4ER% 675,186 17,580 (163) (282,650) 409953
Total comprehensive income/  FERZERE,/ (E518)
(loss) for the year “mE = = 1,378 (61,302) (59,924)
Balance at 31 December 2020 732020 12831 H &
and | January 202 202151 B I B4R 675,186 17,580 1,215 (343,952) 350,029
Total comprehensive loss FREEFBIBELE
for the year - - (762) (51,709) (52471)
Issue of shares BITIRD 17,490 - - - 17,490
Share options lapsed BERRRE RN - (139) - 139 -
Balance at 31 December 2021 [220214E 12831 HEY
LEER 692,676 17,441 453 (395,522) 315,048
41.  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4. HEMBRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of MBBRRIN0NF4IBNHEES 21t
directors on 22 April 2022. HE R T3S o
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